
 
Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG 

PLANNING PANEL 
AGENDA 

 
 Venue The Atrium, The Copeland Centre,  

Catherine Street, Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ  
 Date: Wednesday, 19th January, 2022 
 Time: 2.00 pm 
 Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby           Tel: 07385 362806 

   
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2021 
 

1 - 4 

4.   Schedule of Applications  
 a)   Application 4/21/2360/0O1 - Land at Scalegill Road, 

Moor Row 
5 - 34 

  Outline application for residential development with 
details of proposed access junction and all other 
matters reserved. 
 

 

 b)   Application 4/20/2455/0F1 - Land south of Waters 
Edge Close, Kells, Whitehaven 

35 - 72 

  Application for residential development of 40 dwellings. 
 

 

5.   Schedule of Delegated Decisions 
 

73 - 84 

6.   Development Management Performance Monitoring 
 
 
 

85 - 86 

Public Document Pack



 

7.   Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 The next meeting of the Planning Panel will be held on 

Wednesday 16 February 2022 at 2:00pm in The Copeland 
Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership: Councillors Joan Hully (Chair), Michael McVeigh 
(Deputy Chair), Jackie Bowman, Graham Calvin, Linda Jones-Bulman, 
Mike Hawkins, Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath, Graham Minshaw, 
Russell Studholme and Doug Wilson. 
 
 
Contacts: Direct Dial: 07385 362806 
 E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
 Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 



PLANNING PANEL 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 15 DECEMBER 2021 
 

Present: Councillors Joan Hully Michael McVeigh, Jackie Bowman, 
Graham Calvin, Linda Jones-Bulman, Ged McGrath, Graham Minshaw and 
Russell Studholme 
 
Officers: Nick Hayhurst (Head of Planning and Place), Christie Burns (Planning 
Officer), Michaela Peet (Assistant Solicitor) and Rose Blaney (Democratic 
Services Officer (Scrutiny)) 
 
 

PP70 Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence received from Councillor Doug Wilson and Clive 
Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer)  
 

PP71 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
Councillor Michael McVeigh declared a non-pecuniary interest in Application 4b 
(4/21/2458/0O1) – Weston, Beckermet due to knowing the applicant Mr B 
Atkinson.  
 

PP72 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2021  
 
Consideration was given to the Minutes of the meeting held on  
24 November 2021.  
 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meetings held on 24 November 2021 be 
signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

PP73 Schedule of Applications  
 
The planning applications were then taken in the following order. 
 

PP74 Application 4/21/2458/0O1 - Weston, Beckermet  
 
With permission from the Chair, this item was moved further up the agenda. 
 
Councillor Michael McVeigh recused himself from the discussion and vote on 
this planning application. Time was given for Councillor McVeigh to leave the 
room. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 
The application for outline planning permission (with all matters reserved) for 
redevelopment of builders yard to residential - amended scheme for previous 
application 4/20/2461/0O1 was presented by the Planning Officer. 
 
During discussion of this item the applicant’s agent, Mr B Atkinson, spoke in 
support of the application. 
 
Following questions from Members, a vote was then taken. 
  
The result of the vote was 3 For, 0 Against and 4 Abstentions. 
  
RESOLVED – that the application be Refused.  
 

PP75 Application 4/21/2411/0F1 - Land adjacent to Partfield House, Drigg  
 
The application for change of use of land from woodland for site to 
provide eight motorhome bays, eight self-contained timber 
built holiday cabins, site shop/office building, shower/toilet 
block, bin store with internal access road (Resubmission of 
withdrawn application 4/21/2252/0F1) was presented by the Planning Officer 
. 
Following questions from Members, a vote was then taken. 
  
The result of the vote was 8 For, 0 Against and 0 Abstentions. 
  
RESOLVED- On a unanimous vote that a site visit be undertaken to appraise all 
material planning considerations before determining the application. 
 

PP76 Schedule of Delegated Decisions  
 
The Panel was notified of a number of delegated decisions made during the 
period 15 November 2021 to 3 December 2021. 
 
Clarification was sought and received regarding two decisions that had 
previously been seen by the panel. 
 
RESOLVED – that the Schedule of Delegated Decisions from 15 October 2021 to 
3 December 2021 be noted. 
 
 
 

Page 2



A request was made and seconded by Councillors Jackie Bowman and Graham 
Calvin to have a brief discussion following the close of the meeting regarding 
recent comments in the press about Planning Panel. 
 

PP77 Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 
The next meeting of the Planning Panel will be held on Wednesday 19 January 
2022 at 2:00pm in The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven. 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 2.30 pm  
 

 
Chair 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

                                                    

        

                                                                               

To: PLANNING PANEL 

 

Date of Meeting: 19/01/2022 

Development Management Section 

  

 

 

Application Number:   4/21/2360/0O1 

Application Type:   Outline : CBC 

Applicant:     Mr David Sharpe 

Application Address:  LAND AT SCALEGILL ROAD, MOOR ROW 

Proposal OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR RESIDENTIAL 

DEVELOPMENT WITH DETAILS OF PROPOSED 

ACCESS JUNCTION AND ALL OTHER MATTERS 

RESERVED 

Parish:    Egremont 

Recommendation Summary:   Approve subject to Section 106 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



 
 

 

Reason for Determination by Planning Panel 

This application is brought for consideration by Members of the Planning Panel as the 

proposal is a major development which is a departure from the adopted Copeland Local 

Plan 2013-2028 and also the requirement for a Section 106 Planning Obligation.  

 

Site and Location  

This application site relates to an area of agricultural land to the north of Scalegill Road to 

the west of Moor Row. The site covers an area of 1.50 hectares, and lies to the east of the 

new residential estate of Rusper Drive. The northern boundary of the site abuts the 

embankment to the Whitehaven-Rowrah cycleway, the eastern boundary adjoins the 

 

Crown Copyright.  Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her 

Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 

prosecution or civil proceedings. Copeland Borough Council Licence No. 100019619 (2005). 

Page 6



 
 

recreation ground and the Moor Row Social Club is located adjacent to the southern 

boundary which fronts onto Scalegill Road.   

 

Relevant Planning History 

No relevant planning history.  

 

Proposal  

This outline application seeks to establish the principle of developing the site for residential 

purposes. The application seeks detailed approval of the proposed access junction, however 

all matters relating to layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping are reserved for further 

consideration.  

A detailed plan and supporting access advice report has been submitted with this 

application to show how access can be achieved from Scalegill Road to the south of the 

application site. The proposed access has been designed with a 5.5m wide carriageway and 

1.8m wide footways. The access will be located between the public footpath located to the 

east of Rusper Drive and the existing Social Club, and will benefit from visibility splays of 2.4 

x 43m in each directions along Scalegill Road. As part of this development it is also proposed 

to remove the existing speed bump at the access point onto Scalegill Road, and replace this 

with a raised speed table at the proposed junction.  

Whilst all other matters are reserved for subsequent approval, an indicative layout plan has 

been submitted with this application to show how the site could accommodate a residential 

development of 19 dwellings. It is proposed that the dwellings will be distributed around a 

single spine road leading to a shared driveway. Each plot would benefit from parking and 

turning spaces.  

This planning application is accompanied by the following documents: 

- Location Plan;  

- Existing Site Plan;  

- Proposed Site Plan;  

- Access Advice;  

- Proposed Access Arrangements;  

- Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy; 

- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal; 

- Planning/Design & Access Statement;  

- Phase 1: Desk Top Study Report.  

 

Consultation Responses  

Egremont Town Council  

No comments received.  

Page 7



 
 

Cumbria County Council – Cumbria Highways & LLFA 

This is an outline application with all matter, excluding access, reserved. Therefore, all 

matters relating to the layout of the site the means of access, parking and turning within the 

site shall be reserved for approval at the detail planning stage. 

Access: 

Although the LHA would usually require the applicant to demonstrate that 60 x 2.4 x 60 

meter visibility splays can be achieved for an access that joins a 30mph speed zone, there 

has been traffic calming measures implemented on Scalegill Road which have proven 

effective in reducing speeds in the area. We can therefore accept the 43 x 2.4 x 43 meter 

visibility splays that have been demonstrated on Drawing Number 20/07/977-03 with this 

application in line with Manual for Streets. 

As the proposal will exceed 6x Dwellings, we recommend that it is built to an adoptable 

standard. This would include the access being built in order to accommodate the anticipated 

traffic intensification. The applicant has shown on Drawing Number 20/07/977-03 that the 

proposed access is to be a minimum width of 5.5m extending for a minimum of 15m into 

the site from the carriageway edge. This is acceptable to the LHA in line with the Cumbria 

Development Design Guide. 

The applicant is proposing to remove one of the existing speed humps and replace it with a 

speed table. The LHA raise no concerns to this provided that the following points are 

addressed: 

 It has undergone a stage 1/2 Road Safety Audit 

 It is constructed of bituminous material and not any form of block paving 

 Drainage considerations have been addressed and proposals for draining of the 

public highway on each approach to the junction have been submitted to the LHA for 

consideration 

 The existing road lighting requirements have been checked to ensure they are 

sufficient for the new junction or, that proposed road lighting provision has been 

submitted for our consideration. 

 

Overall, I can confirm that the LHA have no objections to the principle of this proposal for 

19no. Dwellings subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to footways, carriageways and 

cycleways, visibility splays, access roads, access drives, existing highway boundaries, surface 

water discharge, footways, construction traffic management plans, and traffic management 

schemes. 

Lead Local Flood Authority response: 

The applicants are proposing to discharge surface water to an existing watercourse. 

Although the principle of this could be acceptable, they need to provided evidence in line 

with BRE365 that the drainage hierarchy has been considered in accordance with the NPPG. 

Please see below a reference from the NPPG: 

Page 8



 
 

 

Generally, the aim should be to discharge surface run off as high up the following hierarchy 

of drainage options as reasonably practicable: 

1. into the ground (infiltration); 

2. to a surface water body; 

3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; 

4. to a combined sewer. 

Particular types of sustainable drainage systems may not be practicable in all locations. It 

could be helpful therefore for local planning authorities to set out those local situations 

where they anticipate particular sustainable drainage systems not being appropriate. 

Paragraph: 080 Reference ID: 7-080-20150323 

Revision date: 23 03 2015 

 

United Utilities  

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National 

Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 

foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 

way. 

Following our review of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Strategy proposing 

surface water discharging into local watercourse, we can confirm the proposals are 

acceptable in principle to United Utilities. However, we do not have sufficient information 

on the detail of the drainage design. With this in mind, we request drainage conditions, 

relating to surface and foul water, are attached to any subsequent Decision Notice. 

 

Copeland Borough Council – Flood and Coastal Defence Engineer 

I only have a few comments on this Outline Application as follows: 

 The site is in Flood Zone 1 and is at generally a very low risk of surface water 

flooding. 

 The Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy sates that the surface water 

system will be discharged into an existing watercourse at the north of the site. 

 The system will be designed to attenuate at greenfield run off rates up to and 

including a 1 in 100 year storm, plus an allowance for climate change and urban 

creep. 

 I could see no mention of disposal of surface water by infiltration, which needs at 

least to be consider.  The Preliminary Risk Assessment expects to see shallow 

groundwater, so it is unlikely that infiltration would be feasible. 

Page 9



 
 

 The discharge will be on third party land [Sustrans?], so as well as the discharge rate 

and outfall needing to be agreed with the LLFA, so agreement will be needed with 

the third party landowner. 

 It is proposed that the foul sewage is disposed of by means of the existing mains 

sewer.  It has been assumed that this is within the public highway to the south of the 

site, however, our GIS later would indicate that this actually runs just within the 

northern boundary of the site, where the site natural falls towards. 

 

In summary, as there is a low flood risk to the site and the site can be drained, I have no 

objection to the proposed development. 

Topics, such as the drainage hierarchy, detailed drainage design, etc. can be dealt with at 

the Reserved Matter Stage. 

 

Copeland Borough Council – Environmental Health  

Based on the information submitted with the above application and subject to the following 

conditions, Environmental Health have no objections. 

With the note of potential for disruption and the design layout submitted with 2-3 

properties being in close proximity to a licensed premises, we request conditions relating to 

a noise assessment, external lighting, HGV deliveries, operating hours, and construction 

management plans. 

 

Copeland Borough Council – Housing Manager  

25th August 2021 

This is an application for permission for 19 units of market housing in the village of Moor 

Row. The site provides good access to the A595 and the location would likely attract a wide 

market.  

The applicant is proposing that all the units are market housing, citing a limited need for 

affordable housing. Whilst this may seem to be the case given the relatively low house 

prices compared to other parts of the County and Country, Copeland does have an unmet 

need for affordable housing – this is confirmed by the SHMA and our Housing Needs Survey 

from 2020. Newly forming households especially find it difficult to afford to buy a house – 

the survey reported that three quarters of those cannot afford an averagely priced house. 

We would therefore like to see affordable housing on this site and would suggest that 

discounted sale would be the most viable option, on 2- or 3-bedroom properties.  

We agree that there is a need for attractive new ‘executive’ style housing to attract and 

retain young people and families to the borough and welcome the consideration of self-

build plots for the site. In terms of the mix of properties, whilst larger properties are 

Page 10



 
 

attractive to the market, current evidence suggests that the housing need in the borough is 

for more 2- and 3-bedroom properties, so we would like to see this reflected in the mix.  

 

4th November 2021 

In terms of housing need, Moor Row was surveyed as part of our 2020 Housing Needs 

Survey and included in the wider parish summary for Egremont. There was strong interest in 

detached properties and bungalows, with 2 and 3 bedrooms being most in demand from 

those surveyed who were considering a move.  

Whilst we accept the point made by the developer that the location of Moor Row means 

that there is a supply of smaller, more affordable properties within Egremont, Cleator Moor 

and Whitehaven, much of this stock is older, less energy efficient and less attractive to 

people than new, modern housing, and the provision of affordable housing on new sites 

provides a wider offer for people who require such accommodation. We would therefore 

still like to see affordable provision on this site.  

 

6th January 2022 

We welcome this agreement from the developer and do not have any further comments at 

this stage, other than to say our recommendation would be that the affordable units should 

be either 2 or 3 bedroomed properties.  

 

Arboricultural Consultant – Capita  

The site is a rectangular field with hedgerows and small trees along the western, northern 

and eastern boundaries. The indicative layout would have little, if any, impact on the 

existing trees and hedges. No arboricultural information has been provided with this outline 

application and this must be provided at the reserved matters stage in relation to the final 

layout. This can be achieved by way of a condition attached to the decision notice of this 

outline application, should it be acceptable, and should include information on;  

 Existing trees and hedgerows.  

 Trees and hedgerows to be retained/removed.  

 Tree and hedgerow protection measures during the construction phase.  

A detailed hard and soft landscaping scheme for the site will also be required and secured 

by way of a condition attached to the decision notice of this outline application. 

Conditions requiring an Arboricultural Impact assessment and Method Statement, and a 

condition requiring a detailed hard and soft landscaping scheme must be attached to the 

decision notice should this application be acceptable. 

 

Page 11



 
 

Natural England  

No objections. 

 

Cumbria County Council – Footpaths Officer 

Public Footpath 406016 follows an alignment to the west side of the proposed development 

area and must not be altered or obstructed before or after the development has been 

completed. 

If the footpath is to be temporarily obstructed then a formal temporary closure will be 

required there is a 12 week lead in time for this process, for further information please 

contact Sandra.smith@cumbria.gov.uk. 

 

Sports England  

The design and access statement makes no attempt to consider any potential for impact on 

the adjacent playing field from proposing residential development alongside. Paragraph 187 

of the NPPF (2021) requires planning decisions to ensure that new development can be 

integrated effectively with existing businesses and community facilities (such as places of 

worship, pubs, music venues and sports clubs). Existing businesses and facilities should not 

have unreasonable restrictions placed on them as a result of development permitted after 

they were established. In this instance the residential development brought about by the 

applicants planning application is the ‘agent of change’ in the vicinity of the playing field 

site, where the applicant should be required to provide suitable mitigation before the 

development has been completed. 

Having assessed the application Sport England consider that although there is no ball 

trajectory report included with the planning application the risk of prejudicial impact on the 

playing field could be mitigated by the erection of a ball stop fence along the entire 

boundary of the application site with the playing field.  It is therefore essential that the local 

planning authority secures this mitigation by the developer through the planning 

application. It should be provided and be maintained it in perpetuity by the developer, in 

order to protect the playing field and enable the residential development to exist alongside 

in order to meet the requirements of paragraph 187 of the NPPF. 

Provided that mitigation is secured as part of any approval Sport England would be satisfied 

that the proposed development would not significantly affect the playing field and the 

development could meet Exception 3 of its Playing Fields Policy, in that: 

'The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing pitch 

and does not:  

 reduce the size of any playing pitch;  

Page 12

mailto:Sandra.smith@cumbria.gov.uk


 
 

 result in the inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of 

adequate safety margins and run-off areas);  

 reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to accommodate playing pitches or 

the capability to rotate or reposition playing pitches to maintain their quality;  

 result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities on the site; or  

 prejudice the use of any remaining areas of playing field on the site.' 

 

Consultation with the National Governing Bodies of Sport 

Sport England has a memorandum of understanding with the National Governing Bodies of 

Sport (NGBs) and consults with them on planning applications.  Sport England has consulted 

with the Football Foundation (FF) on this application and they advise that they do not 

consider that there appears to be any direct impact on the playing field. However, the 

playing field appears to be used for a variety of football formats (including rotating 

pitches/orientation of pitches), therefore any mitigation against possible ball strike should 

require the installation of a  permanent 6m high ball retention mesh net fence along the 

western edge of the playing field. The fencing could be positioned within the hedge line. The 

ball strike mitigation fence should be maintained to a suitable standard and provide 

adequate protection in perpetuity.  The users of the facility should also consider their 

liability insurance should an incident occur in the future. 

Conclusion  

In light of the above, Sport England has no objection subject to planning conditions or a 

legal agreement to secure construction of a 6 metre high ball-stop fence (and maintenance 

in perpetuity) by the developer. 

If planning conditions or legal agreement are not used to secure the ball-stop fence then 

this response should be considered an objection because of prejudicial impact of the 

residential development on the adjacent playing field. 

 

Electricity North West 

The proposed development appears to be within very close proximity to Electricity North 

West’s high and low voltage electricity distribution assets.  

The applicant should be advised that great care should be taken at all times to protect both 

the electrical apparatus and any personnel working in its vicinity. 

The applicant should also be referred to two relevant documents produced by the Health 

and Safety Executive, which are available from The Stationery Office Publications Centre and 

The Stationery Office Bookshops, and advised to follow the guidance given. 

 

Page 13



 
 

The documents are as follows:- 

HS(G)47 – Avoiding danger from underground services. 

GS6 – Avoidance of danger from overhead electric 

lines.                                                                      

                                                                                                                                                                     

The applicant should also be advised that, should there be a requirement to divert the 

apparatus because of the proposed works, the cost of such a diversion is usually borne by 

the applicant. The applicant should be aware of our requirements for access to inspect, 

maintain, adjust, repair, or alter any of our distribution equipment. This includes carrying 

out works incidental to any of these purposes and this could require works at any time of 

day or night. Our Electricity Services Desk (Tel No. 0800 195 4141) will advise on any issues 

regarding diversions or modifications. In the event of a dangerous situation/emergency, the 

number to call is 105. 

Electricity North West offers a fully supported mapping service, at a modest cost, for our 

electricity assets. This is a service which is constantly updated by our Data Management 

Team who can be contacted by telephone on 0800 195 4141 or access the website 

http://www.enwl.co.uk/our-services/know-before-you-dig 

It is recommended that the applicant gives early consideration in project design as it is 

better value than traditional methods of data gathering. It is, however, the applicant’s 

responsibility to demonstrate the exact relationship on site between any assets that may 

cross the site and any proposed development. 

 

Public Representation  

This application was advertised by way of site notice, press notice and neighbour 

notification letters issued to twelve residential properties. Five letters of objection have 

been received in relation to this application, which raise the following concerns: 

- The proposal only references volumes of traffic from the 19 properties to be built 

against the defined database for traffic movements however what is not clear is the 

volume of traffic during construction and the impact that will have on the adjacent 

properties and the public highway. 

- Whilst we accept the proposal is specifically aligned to the development of the land 

there is no mention or detail of the risk assessment that has been developed to 

assess the aggregated impact of traffic management during construction phase.  

- Construction vehicles will cause noise and disruption to existing dwellings. 

- The proposal to tie into the existing junction could cause issues with traffic access 

and egress from the social club. 

- There will be a considerable increase traffic in the area adjacent to a social club, 

playground and school. These look underestimated within the submitted reports. 

Page 14

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.enwl.co.uk%2Four-services%2Fknow-before-you-dig&data=04%7C01%7Cchristie.burns%40copeland.gov.uk%7Ca15ec8aba0a147bfc46c08d9939fc9e1%7Cb6d1253e02e144bb8e79fe4ee8606cf0%7C1%7C0%7C637703137095415146%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=K3E3PykgM95GyKkXQ%2F%2BV2IrKaZltBMbDazsZ1pm12kE%3D&reserved=0


 
 

- The proposal defines that the surface water management will tie into the existing 

system however it is not clear whether the existing system has the capacity to 

accommodate any additional volume. Looking at current surface water drainage 

system located within Rusper Drive and the acknowledged challenges of drainage in 

this specific area remains unclear as to what impact the additional surface water 

system requirements are to accommodate the development.  

- Concerns that the development is using existing hedging to mitigate surface water 

flooding, there are no other proposals for prevention of flooding to adjacent areas. 

- Although the land does not hold any special ecological sites or endangered species, it 

is used as feeding grounds for local wildlife, including breeding birds, owls and bats. 

There is no statement that the winter ecological report would be conducted again in 

the summer months to accommodate for changes in vegetation and wildlife. 

- It is not clear how privacy has been considered against the existing adjacent 

properties where existing builds have extensive panoramic views.  

- Overshadowing and loss of privacy for existing dwellings. How would privacy be 

maintained and overshadowing be prevented? 

- How will be the privacy of the social club and playground be protected? 

- The Social Club are concerned about the possibility of any future noise nuisance due 

to close proximity of the proposed new build dwelling to their boundary.  

- Whilst the Club Committee are not against the building of the proposed houses they 

are concerned about the proximity of the three intended plots closest to the Club. 

These are nearer the Club than the existing estate buildings to our west and, 

although there have been no official complaints made, the music on function nights 

is perceptible. The Committee would suggest no building within a reasonable 

distance of the Club to avoid any future noise complaints leading to the demise of 

Moor Row Working Men’s Club. 

- The Club is the villages community hub, we hold family parties and are used by 

groups for fitness, dancing and various other get togethers. It is events such as these 

that allow us to be financially viable and should we be the subject of noise 

complaints from new builds, which will be extremely close, the Club would be 

severely impacted.  

 

Nine letters of support have also been received in relation to this application, which 

confirm that there are no objections to the proposed development.  

One letter stating a neutral response has also been received which states that drawing 

number 20/07/977-01 states that the area of land between the proposed development and 

the school is reference as Recreation Ground. This is incorrect this land is the school field 

which is owned by the school. 

 

Planning Policy  

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 

accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

Page 15



 
 

Development Plan  

Copeland Local Plan 2013 – 2028 (Adopted December 2013)  

Core Strategy  

Policy ST1 – Strategic Development Principles 

Policy ST2 – Spatial Development Strategy 

Policy SS1 – Improving the Housing Offer 

Policy SS2 – Sustainable Housing Growth  

Policy SS3 – Housing Needs, Mix and Affordability  

Policy T1 – Improving Accessibility and Transport 

Policy ENV1 – Flood Risk and Risk Management  

Policy ENV3 – Biodiversity and Geodiversity  

Policy ENV5 – Protecting and Enhancing the Borough’s Landscapes 

Development Management Policies (DMP)  

Policy DM10 – Achieving Quality of Place  

Policy DM11 – Sustainable Development Standards 

Policy DM12 – Standards of New Residential Developments 

Policy DM22 – Accessible Developments 

Policy DM24 – Development Proposal and Flood Risk 

Policy DM25 – Protecting Nature Conservation Sites, Habitats and Species 

Policy DM26 – Landscaping 

Copeland Local Plan 2001-2016 (LP): 

Saved Policy TSP8 - Parking Requirements 

Proposals Map including settlement boundaries. 

 

Other Material Planning Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)  

National Design Guide (NDG). 

Cumbria Development Design Guide (CDG)  

Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2021 (SHMA) 

Page 16



 
 

Copeland Borough Council Housing Strategy 2018 – 2023 (CBCHS) 

The Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit (CLGC) 

Copeland Borough-Wide Housing Needs Survey (2020) 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (CHSR). 

Emerging Copeland Local Plan:  

The emerging Copeland Local Plan 2017-2035 has recently been subject to a Preferred 

Options Consultation which ended on 30th November 2020. The Preferred Options 

Consultation builds upon the completed Issues and Options Consultation which finished in 

January 2020. Given the stage of preparation, the emerging Copeland Local Plan 2017-2035 

has only limited weight in decision making, but provides an indication of the direction of 

travel of the emerging planning policies, which themselves have been developed in 

accordance with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

Assessment  

The primary issues relevant to the determination of this application are:  

- The principle of the development;  

- Housing need; 

- Settlement Character, Landscape Impact and Visual Impact 

- Design and impact on residential amenity;  

- Access, Parking and Highway Safety 

- Flood risk and the achievement of satisfactory drainage;  

- The impact of the development on highway safety;  

- Tree/Ecology;  

- Contaminated Land.  

 

Principle of Development 

The principle of new housing is supported in the Copeland Local Plan through strategic 

policies ST1 and ST2 along with policies SS1, SS2 and SS3. These policies seek to promote 

sustainable development to meet the needs and aspirations of the Boroughs housing 

market, as well as having consideration for the requirements of smaller settlements within 

the Borough, which respect their scale and function. 

Moor Row is classified as a Local Centre under Policy ST2 of the Copeland Local Plan. Policy 

ST2 seeks to support appropriately scaled development in defined Local Centres which helps 

to sustain services and facilities for local communities. In respect of housing development, 

the following is identified as appropriate: within the defined physical limits of development 

as appropriate; possible small extension sites on the edges of settlement; housing to meet 

general and local needs; and, affordable housing and windfall sites. 

Page 17



 
 

The majority of the application site lies outside of, but directly adjacent to, the designated 

settlement boundary for Moor Row, and as such, the proposal is in conflict with Policy ST2. 

Policy ST2 of the Copeland Local Plan states that outside of the defined settlement 

boundaries, development is restricted to that which has a proven requirement for such a 

location, including housing that meets proven specific and local needs including provision 

for agricultural workers, replacement dwellings, replacement of residential caravans, 

affordable housing and the conversion of rural buildings to residential use. 

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF requires the application of the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development to the provision of housing where there are no relevant 

development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for determining the 

application are out-of-date. Out of date includes where the Local Planning Authority cannot 

demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites (with the appropriate buffer, as 

set out in paragraph 73); or where the Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of 

housing was substantially below (less than 75% of) the housing requirement over the 

previous three years.  

In November 2020, Copeland Borough Council produced a Five Year Housing Land Supply 

Statement which demonstrates a 6.35 year supply of deliverable housing sites against the 

emerging housing requirement calculated in the updated Strategic Housing Market 

Assessment (SHMA) and a 55 year supply against the Government’s standard methodology 

figure. Copeland Borough Council has also met the most recent Housing Delivery Test.  

Notwithstanding the above, the policies in the Local Plan must still be considered out of 

date and only some weight can be given to their content as far as they are consistent with 

the provisions of the NPPF. Consultation on the Local Plan 2017-2035 Preferred Options 

Draft (ECLP) ended in December 2020.  

The ECLP will, once adopted, replace the policies of the adopted Local Plan. The ECLP has 

been drafted based upon an evidence base. The SHMA calculates a housing need in 

Copeland over the plan period 2017-2035 of 140 dwellings per annum. The ECLP confirms 

that to meet the housing need identified in the SHMA, development will be required beyond 

the existing development boundaries identified in Policy ST2 of the CS. The ECLP seeks to 

identify Moor Row as a ‘Sustainable Rural Village’ reflective of the number and type of 

services it contains and identifies a settlement boundary around the village.  

The ECLP identifies the Application Site as within the revised development boundary for 

Moor Row, and is identified as a draft allocation site for housing. Whilst the proposed 

development conforms with the emerging policies and provisions of the ECLP, as the 

document is at an early stage of preparation and there are outstanding objections to the 

relevant policies applicable to this development, this can be given little weight at present. 

The ECLP does however show the direction for growth in the area and identifies the site as 

suitable for residential purposes.  

In the context of the provisions of Paragraph 11, the defined development boundary for 

Moor Row must be considered out of date. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out that planning 

permission should be granted unless: 

Page 18



 
 

i. The application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh 

the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. 

The site lies on the western edge of the built up area of Moor Row, and is considered to be 

within walking from the local services within the village which includes a primary school, 

Church, pub, employers, open spaces and a post box as identified within the Copeland 

Village Survey 2019.  

In applying the provisions of paragraph 11:  

- The site would assist in boosting housing supply to meet the identified need for 

housing in the Borough;  

- The proposed development comprising the erection of nineteen dwellings is 

appropriate in size to the designation of Moor Row as a Local Centre in accordance 

with the spatial objectives of Policy ST2;  

- The site adjoins the existing settlement boundary and is located adjacent to the 

existing built form on the western edge of Moor Row;  

- The site is located in close and convenient proximity to the services and employment 

opportunities located within Moor Row for which the settlement has been 

designated as a Local Centre in Policy ST2 of the Local Plan.  

- The proposed development will support existing services and thus the aspiration of 

retaining these services;  

- Some sustainable travel options exist within the vicinity, including the Coast to Coast 

Cycleway, as per the provisions of Policy DM22 of the Local Plan. 

 

Housing Need and Housing Mix 

Policy SS3 of the Local Plan requires housing development to demonstrate how proposals 

will deliver an appropriate mix of housing as set out in the SHMA.  

Moor Row falls within the Whitehaven Housing Market Area (HMA) of Copeland Strategic 

Housing Market Assessment (SHMA).  

The SMHA suggests that there is a slightly lower proportion of market home to be 3 

bedroomed needed due to the large current stock of this size, and a greater need for 1 

bedroomed rented affordable units. It also identifies a need for bungalows and affordable 

housing delivering smaller family homes.   

Initially the application sought permission for 19 units all to be developed for market 

housing, as the agent cited a limited need for affordable housing within Moor Row. The 

Council’s Housing Team confirmed that Copeland does have an unmet need for affordable 

housing which is confirmed by the SHMA and Housing Needs Survey. As the application is 

for a major development, extensive discussion were undertaken with the agent for this 

application to secure 10% of properties within this site are available for affordable home 

ownership. Based on these discussions, the agent has confirmed that 10% of the total 

number of homes development within this site will be made available for affordable home 

Page 19



 
 

ownership, with these properties sold at a price no greater than 80% of market value. The 

Council’s Housing Team have confirmed that they welcome this agreement from the 

applicant and have no further comments to make at this stage.  

A Section 106 Agreement is therefore proposed to secure 10% of the proposed dwellings to 

be sold as affordable units as is required by Policy H8PO of the ELP and the NPPF. On this 

basis this proposal is considered to create a residential offer which meets the needs of the 

Boroughs housing market and is therefore considered to be in accordance with Policies SS2 

and SS3 of the Copeland Local Plan. 

 

Settlement Character, Landscape Impact and Visual Impact 

Policy ENV5 states that the Borough’s landscapes will be protected and enhanced by: 

protecting all landscapes from inappropriate change by ensuring that the development does 

not threaten or detract from the distinctive characteristics of that particular area; that 

where the benefits of the development outweigh the potential harm, ensuring that the 

impact of the development on the landscape is minimised through adequate mitigation, 

preferably on-site; and, supporting proposals which enhance the value of the Borough’s 

landscapes.  

Policy DM10 seeks that development responds positively to the character of the site and the 

immediate and wider setting and enhances local distinctiveness including: an appropriate 

size and arrangement of development plots; the appropriate provision, orientation, 

proportion, scale and massing of buildings; and, careful attention to the design of spaces 

between buildings. 

The application site comprises of undeveloped land that lies on the edge of the existing 

settlement boundary for Moor Row, between the historic built form and a new residential 

estate.  

The Cumbria Landscape Character Guidance and Toolkit (CLCGT) identifies the site as being 

within Sub Type 5d ‘Lowland – Urban Fringe’. The Key Characteristics of the land comprise: 

long term urban influences on agricultural land, recreation, large scale buildings and 

industrial estates are common, mining and opencast coal workings are found around Keekle 

and Moor Row, and wooded valleys, restored woodland and some semi-urbanised 

woodland provide interest. 

The Guidelines for development within this landscape classification include: when new 

development takes place consider opportunities to enhance and strengthen green 

infrastructure to provide a link between urban areas and the wider countryside; protect 

‘green’ areas from sporadic and peripheral development; protect countryside areas from 

sporadic and peripheral development through the local plans; careful siting of any new 

development in non-prominent locations; strengthen undeveloped areas of land with mixed 

woodland and hedgerow planting and restoration of natural landscape features; and along 

major roads, develop schemes to improve visual awareness of the individual settlements, 

land uses and cultural landmarks. 

Page 20



 
 

The site comprises an area of agricultural land located to the west of Moor Row, directly 

adjoining the existing settlement boundary and the new residential estate of Rusper Drive. 

This area of Moor Row is characterised by detached dwellings formed around an estate style 

road. The proposed development would act as an infill of the greenfield site located 

between the existing village form and the adjacent residential estate. The proposed 

development would continue to extend the developed form of the settlement to the west, 

reflecting the character of this part of the village.  

Whilst the development would be considered a small edge of settlement extension the 

proposed site does not extend into the open countryside, as the site adjoins the existing 

residential estate of Rusper Drive. Consequently, the site could be considered to infill and 

naturally round off this part of the settlement. The development would be viewed against 

the backdrop of these existing properties. Additional landscaping, which would be detailed 

within any subsequent reserved matters applications, will also help to soften the potential 

landscape and visual impacts of the development. 

Whilst the matters of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping are reserved for 

subsequent approval, the illustrative layout plan submitted in support of the application 

demonstrates that the site could be developed in a manner that respects the form, density 

and character of the existing developments within the locality. The proposal is therefore 

considered to comply with policies ST1 and ENV5 of the Copeland Local Plan and provision 

of the NPPF. 

 

Design and Impact on Residential Amenity  

Within the Copeland Local Plan, Policies ST1, DM10, DM11, and DM12 of the Local Plan, and 

section 12 of the NPPF seek to secure high standards of design for new residential 

properties. These policies seek to create and maintain a reasonable standard of amenity, 

and set out detailed requirements with regard to standard of residential amenity, including 

the provision of parking spaces, separation distances and open space. 

This application site lies adjacent to the built form of Moor Row, with the new residential 

estate of Rusper Drive located to the east of the site. The application includes indicative 

details of the proposed layout only with details of the siting, scale and appearance of the 

dwellings reserved for subsequent approval at the Reserved Matters stage. It is considered 

that, based on the indicative layout a scheme for this site could be developed to reasonably 

allow for adequate separation distances to be achieved between facing elevations of the 

proposed and existing dwelling as required by Policy DM12 of the Copeland Local Plan.  

Concerns have been raised from neighbouring properties with regard to retaining privacy, 

however these matters are reserved for subsequent approvals. The application site is also 

separated from the adjacent residential estate by a public footpath, therefore this 

separation alongside the use of suitable boundary treatments would help to mitigate the 

potential impact on the adjacent properties. Details of the boundary treatment would be 

submitted at the reserved matters planning stage. 

Page 21



 
 

 

Concerns have also been raised with regard to the impact of the proposed development 

upon the adjacent recreation ground and also the Moor Row Social Club which occupies 

part of the site frontage. Sports England have been consulted on this application and have 

confirmed that they have no objection to the development subject to planning conditions of 

legal agreement to secure construction of a 6 metre high ball-stop fence by the 

development. The agent for the application has agreed to the inclusion of an appropriately 

worded planning condition to ensure this mitigation measure is secure and retained as part 

of this development. In order to overcome concerns with regard to the proximity of the 

residential development to the Moor Row Social Club and to reduce potential issues arising 

from the close proximity to a licensed premises, the agent has also agreed to carry out a 

noise assessment and to undertaken remedial action where required. This detail will also be 

secured by an appropriately worded planning condition.   

Whilst the matters of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping are reserved for 

subsequent approval, the illustrative layout plan submitted in support of the application 

demonstrates that a development layout is deliverable with interface separation distances 

that would not result in harm to the residential amenity of the neighbouring residential 

dwellings through loss of light, overshadowing, overbearing and overlooking. The 

requirements of Policy DM12 of the Local Plan are considered achievable. 

 

Access, Parking and Highway Safety 

Policy T1 of the Core Strategy requires mitigation measures to be secured to address the 

impact of major housing schemes on the Boroughs transportation system. Policy DM22 of 

the Copeland Local Plan requires developments to be accessible to all users and to meet 

adopted car parking standards, which reflect the needs of the Borough in its rural context.  

Although this application is in outline form, the proposal as submitted does include full 

details of the proposed access for the development. A detailed plan has been submitted 

with this application to show how access can be achieved from Scalegill Road to the south of 

the application site. The proposed access has been designed with a 5.5m wide carriageway, 

benefitting from a 1.8m wide footpath, and visibility splays of 2.4 m x 43m in each direction. 

As part of this development it is also proposed to remove the existing speed bump at the 

access point on Scalegill Road, and replace it with a raised speed table at the proposed 

junction.  

Concerns have been raised from neighbouring objectors with regard to the increased traffic 

from the development, particularly during the construction phase, however no objections 

have been received from the Highway Authority. Cumbria Highways have confirmed that 

although the Highway Authority would usually require the applicant to demonstrate that 

60m visibility splays can be achieved for an access that joins a 30mph speed zone, there has 

been traffic calming measures implemented on Scalegill Road which have proven effective 

in reducing speeds in the area. They therefore confirm that the proposed visibility splays 

Page 22



 
 

from this access are acceptable. The Highway Authority have also confirmed that they have 

no concerns with the proposal to remove one of the existing speed humps and its 

replacement with a speed table, however an appropriately worded planning conditions will 

be attached to any decision notice in order to secure full details of this proposal. Conditions 

relating to footways, carriageways and cycleways, viability splays, access roads, access 

drives, existing highway boundaries, surface water discharge, footways, and construction 

traffic management plans will also be included on any decision notice at the request of 

Cumbria Highways.  

Based on the inclusion of these requested conditions the proposal is considered to be 

compliant with the Policy T1 and Policy DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan. 

 

Drainage and Flood Risk   

Policy ST1B(ii) and paragraph 163 of the NPPF seek to focus development on sites that are 

at least risk of flooding and where development in flood risk is unavoidable, ensure that the 

risk is minimised or mitigated through appropriate design. Policy ENV1 and DM24 of the 

Copeland Local Plan reinforces the focus of protecting development against flood risk.  

Although the application site is located within Flood Zone 1, as the applicant is for a major 

residential development a Floor Risk Assessment has been produced to support the scheme, 

and the Council’s Flood and Coastal Defence Engineer, Lead Local Flood Authority and 

United Utilities have been consulted upon this application. This Flood Risk Assessment 

concludes that the site is at low risk or river or sea flooding and is not at risk of any other 

sources of flooding. As the application is in outline form only, the agent for this application 

has indicated that the site will be drained to meet appropriate standards, and will be 

designed to attenuate to greenfield run-off rates up to and including the 1:100 year event 

plus climate change and urban creep. Concerns have been raised with regard to drainage 

and flood risk from neighbouring properties, however no objections have been received 

from any Statutory Consultees on this matter. In line with these comments relevant 

conditions are proposed to ensure an adequate drainage system can be secured to serve the 

site and to ensure a surface water drainage scheme is achievable based on the hierarchy of 

drainage options set out in the NPPF. These details should be secured prior to 

commencement of works on the site.  

The imposition of these conditions will secure proper drainage within the site and will 

manage the risk of flooding and pollution, ensuring that the development complies with 

Policy ENV1 and Policy DM24 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 – 2028 and the provisions of 

the NPPF.  

 

Trees/Ecology  

Policies ST1, ENV3, and DM25 seeks to ensure that new development will protect and 

enhance biodiversity and geodiversity.  

Page 23



 
 

 

A preliminary ecological appraisal has been submitted in support of this planning application 

and provides an assessment of the ecological impacts of the development. The report 

identifies potential ecological impacts to breeding birds, other mammals and invasive non-

native species, and recommends the following mitigation measures: 

- Undertaking vegetation clearance outside nesting seasons or if not a breeding bird 

survey must be conducted.  

- Plant operatives will be vigilant of mammal burrows. Any burrows found will be 

inspected and to exclude mammals before works proceed.  

- All plant and equipment will be washed and dried prior to being delivered to site, 

and materials will be clean and free from contamination.  

- No arisings or spoil will be removed from site unless free of invasive non-native 

species or otherwise to an appropriate facility.  

 

Appropriately worded planning conditions will be attached to any decision notice to ensure 

the development is carried out in accordance with the ecological appraisal and identified 

mitigation measures. Natural England have confirmed that they have no objections to this 

application.  

The Council’s Aboricultural Consultant has also confirmed that the indicative layout would 

have little, if any, impact on the existing trees and hedges, however no arboricultural 

information has been provided with this outline application and this must be provided at 

the reserved matters stage in relation to the final layout. The Consultant has therefore 

requested conditions requiring an Arboricultural Impact assessment and Method Statement, 

and a condition requiring a detailed hard and soft landscaping scheme.  

Subject to the planning conditions set out above the proposal is considered to achieve the 

requirement of Policies ST1, ENV3 and DM25 of the Copeland Local Plan.  

 

Contaminated Land 

Section 15 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the 

natural and local environment by remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, 

contaminated and unstable land, where appropriate.  

The application site is not identified as potentially contaminated land, however a Phase 1 

Preliminary Geo- Environmental Risk Assessment has been submitted to support this 

application. The Assessment concludes that the development is currently considered to 

represent a low geotechnical risk and very low risk to proposed end users, adjacent sites, 

and controlled waters. It is however recommended that a Phase 2 Ground Investigation 

work be carried out and the site operates a ‘watching brief’ and ‘observational techniques’. 

Appropriately worded planning conditions will be attached to any decision notice to ensure 

the development is carried out in accordance with the ecological appraisal and identified 

mitigation measures. 

Page 24



 
 

 

Planning Balance  

The application site is located outside of the settlement boundary for Moor Row as defined 

in Policy ST2 of the Copeland Local Plan. 

For the reasons outlined, in assessing the proposed development, Paragraph 11 of the NPPF 

is engaged with the policies of the Development Plan which are most important for 

determining the application are to be considered out of date and it required that planning 

permission be granted unless:  

- The application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.  

 

The proposed development is in clear conflict with the provisions of Policy ST2 of the Local 

Plan with regard to the location outside the settlement boundary for Moor Row; however, 

given the importance of this policy to the determination of the application and its level of 

conformity with the NPPF, only limited weight can be given to this conflict in decision taking. 

As the ECLP is at an early stage of preparation and there are outstanding objections to the 

relevant policies applicable to this development, this can be given little weight at present. 

However the ECLP identifies the application site as within the revised development 

boundary for Moor Row, and as a draft allocation site for housing, indicating the direction 

for future growth in the area. 

The development will assist in boosting housing supply within Moor Row, is of an 

appropriate scale for the Local Centre, will support the retention of existing services locally, 

and benefits from some sustainable travel options in accordance with the spatial objectives 

of the Local Plan. A total of four affordable ownership homes are also proposed as part of 

this development, this equates to the delivery of 10% of the development as is required by 

Policy H8PO of the ELP and the NPPF.  

Whilst the development by virtue of its location would have some impacts on the existing 

character of the western edge of the village, the site would not extend into the open 

countryside and would infill the remaining greenfield site between the existing built form of 

the village and the new residential estate of Rusper Drive to the east, which the 

development has been designed to reflect. The proposed development is therefore 

considered to infill and naturally round off this part of the settlement, and would be viewed 

against the existing built form of Moor Row limiting its impacts.  

Conclusion 

On balance, whilst some conflicts are identified it is considered that these are collectively 

not sufficiently harmful to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the identified benefits 

of the development, which would include: the provision of housing in a sustainable location, 

Page 25



 
 

and supporting local services when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a 

whole. 

 

 

Recommendation:- 

Members authorise delegated authority to the Head of Planning and Place to approve 

outline planning permission for the development subject to:  

- A planning obligation securing the delivery of 10% affordable units within the 

development; and;  

- The planning conditions outlined below:-. 

 

Conditions   

Standard Conditions 
 

1. The layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping must be approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
 
To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended 

by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2. Detailed plans and drawings with respect to the matters reserved for subsequent 
approval must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within three years of the 
date of this permission and the development hereby permitted must be commenced 
not later than the later of the following dates:- 

 

a) The expiration of THREE years from the date of this permission 

Or 

b) The expiration of TWO years from the final approval of the reserved matters 

or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last 

such matter to be approved. 

Reason 

To enable the Local Planning Authority to control the development in detail and to 

comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by 

the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

Page 26



 
 

 

 

3. This permission relates to the following plans and documents as received on the 
respective dates and development must be carried out in accordance with them:- 
 

 Location Plan, Scale 1:2500, Drawing No 20/07/977-01, received by the Local 
Planning Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 Existing Site Plan, Scale 1:500, Drawing No 20/07/977-02, received by the 
Local Planning Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 Proposed Site Plan, Scale 1:500, Drawing No 20/07/977-03, received by the 
Local Planning Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 Access Advice, prepared by Tetra Tech, received by the Local Planning 
Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 Flood Risk Assessment, received by the Local Planning Authority on the 10th 
August 2021. 

 Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Prepared by Hesketh Ecology August 2021, 
received by the Local Planning Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 Planning/Design & Access Statement, received by the Local Planning 
Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 Phase 1: Desk Top Study Report (Preliminary Risk Assessment), Prepared by 
GEO Environmental Engineering August 2021, received by the Local Planning 
Authority on the 10th August 2021. 

 
Reason 
 
To conform with the requirement of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  

 

Pre Commencement Conditions 

4. No development must commence until a surface water drainage scheme has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage 
scheme must include: 
 
I. An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 

Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This 
investigation shall include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions 
and the potential for infiltration of surface water;  

i. A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning 
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); 
and 

ii. A timetable for its implementation. 
 

Page 27



 
 

The approved scheme must also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent 
replacement national standards. 
 
The development hereby permitted must be carried out only in accordance with the 
approved drainage scheme. 
 
Reason 
 
To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the 
risk of flooding and pollution in accordance with the provision of Policy ENV1 and 
Policy DM24 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 – 2028. 

 

5. The carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycleways etc. must be designed, constructed, 
drained and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and in this respect further details, 
including longitudinal/cross sections, shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval before work commences on site. No work must be 
commenced until a full specification has been approved. These details must be in 
accordance with the standards laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide. Any 
works so approved must be constructed before the development is complete and 
shall be maintained at all times thereafter.  
 
Reason 
 
In the interest of highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and 

Policy DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

 

6. Before development commences full details of the foul and surface water drainage 
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved scheme shall become operational before the development is brought 
into use and shall be so maintained thereafter.   

 
Reason 

 
To ensure the provision of a satisfactory drainage scheme. 
 
 

7. No dwellings, buildings or structures must be commenced until the access roads, as 
approved, are defined by kerbs and sub base construction. 
 
Reason 
 
To ensure that the access roads are defined and laid out at an early stage in In the 

interest of highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and Policy 

DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

Page 28



 
 

 

 

 

8. Details of all measures to be taken by the applicant/developer to prevent surface 
water discharging onto or off the highway must be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to development being commenced. Any approved works 
must be implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be 
maintained operational thereafter. 
 
Reason:  
 
In the interests of highway safety and environmental management. 

 

9. Development must not commence until a Construction Traffic Management Plan has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
CTMP must include details of: 

 

 pre-construction road condition established by a detailed survey for 
accommodation works within the highways boundary conducted with a 
Highway Authority representative; with all post repairs carried out to the 
satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority at the applicants expense; 

 details of proposed crossings of the highway verge; 

 retained areas for vehicle parking, maneuvering, loading and unloading for 
their specific purpose during the development;  

 cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway; 

 details of proposed wheel washing facilities; 

 the sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent spillage or 
deposit of any materials on the highway; 

 construction vehicle routing; 

 the management of junctions to and crossings of the public highway and other 
public rights of way/footway; 

 Details of any proposed temporary access points (vehicular / pedestrian); 

 surface water management details during the construction phase. 
 
The development must be carried out in accordance with the approved details at all 
times thereafter.  
 
Reason 
 
To ensure the undertaking of the development does not adversely impact upon the 
fabric or operation of the local highway network and in the interests of highway and 
pedestrian safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and Policy DM22 of the 
Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

 

Page 29



 
 

 

 

10. Prior to the commencement of development, a design for a traffic management 
scheme on the C4003 as shown indicatively on drawing number 20/07/977-03 must 
be provided including full engineering, drainage, lighting and construction details, for 
approval in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Local 
Highway Authority. Thereafter, prior to occupation of any dwelling, the scheme must 
be implemented in accordance with the approved plans and retained at all times 
thereafter.  

 
Reason 

 

In the interest of highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and 

Policy DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 – 2028. 

 

11. No development must take place until a Noise Assessment has been submitted to, 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The noise assessment must 

fully consider the weekend/evenings and night time operation of the nearby licensed 

premises to provide representative levels of noise. The development must be carried 

out in accordance with the approved scheme and any remedial action must be 

implemented prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby approved and retained 

at all times thereafter.  

 

Reason 

 

To reduce potential issues arising from the close proximity of the adjacent licensed 

premises. 

 

12. Before development commences, a Construction Management Plan must be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan must 

include provide details of dust emissions, noise and vibration, and must identify 

remedial action to prevent nuisance. The development must be carried out in 

accordance with the approved details at all times thereafter. 

 

Reason  

In order to protect residential amenity.   

 

13. No development must take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape 

works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  These works must include hard surfacing, means of enclosure, finished 

Page 30



 
 

levels or contours etc.  Landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details. 

 

Reason 

  

To enhance the appearance of the development in the interest of visual amenities of 

the area and to ensure a satisfactory landscaping scheme. 

 

14. No development must take place until an Arboricultural Impact Assessment and 

Method Statement, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. The development must be carried out in accordance with these 

approved details at all times thereafter. 

 

Reason 

 

To adequately protect the existing trees on site which are considered worthy of 

retention in the interests of visual amenity. 

 

15. Prior to the commencement of development, full details of the proposed 6 metre high 

ball stop fence to be installed along the western edge of the application site must be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This fence must 

be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of 

any dwelling hereby approved. The approved fence must be retained at all times 

thereafter.  

 

Reason 

 

To protect the playing field and enable the residential development to exist alongside 

in order to meet the requirements of paragraph 187 of the NPPF. 

 

Prior to Occupation/Use Conditions: 

 

16. The access drive must be surfaced in bituminous or cement bound materials, or 
otherwise bound and must be constructed and completed before the development 
is occupied/brought into use. 

 
Reason 
 
In the interest of highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and 

Policy DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

 

Page 31



 
 

 

 

17. Any existing highway fence/wall boundary must be reduced to a height not 
exceeding 1.05m above the carriageway level of the adjacent highway in accordance 
with details submitted to the Local Planning Authority and which have subsequently 
been approved before the development is brought into use and must not be raised 
to a height exceeding 1.05m thereafter. 

 
Reason 
 
In the interest of highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and 

Policy DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

 

18. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved footways must be 
provided that link continuously and conveniently to the nearest existing footway, 
details of which must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to their first installation. Once installed the footways shall be 
retained at all times in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason  
 
In the interest of highway safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 and 
Policy DM22 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

 

Other Conditions 
 

19. Foul and surface water must be drained on separate systems.  

 

Reason 

 

To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution in 
accordance with the provision of Policy ENV1 and Policy DM24 of the Copeland Local 
Plan 2013 – 2028. 

 

20. This permission gives outline approval for a maximum of nineteen dwellings only at 

this site.  

 

Reason  

To ensure an appropriate form of development at this site in accordance with the 

provisions of Policy ST1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028.   

 

 

Page 32



 
 

 

21. The development must be carried out in accordance with and implement all of the 
details and mitigation measures specified within the Flood Risk Assessment, received 
by the Local Planning Authority on the 10th August 2021. 
 

Reason  

 

For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that adequate measures are incorporated 

to protect the occupiers from flooding.  

 

22. The development must implement all of the mitigation and compensation measures 

set out in the approved document Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, Prepared by 

Hesketh Ecology August 2021, received by the Local Planning Authority on the 10th 

August 2021. The development must be carried out in accordance with the approved 

document at all times thereafter.  

 
Reasons 

To protect the ecological interests evident on the site. 

 

23. The development must be carried out in accordance with and implement all of the 
details and mitigation measures specified within Phase 1: Desk Top Study Report 
(Preliminary Risk Assessment), Prepared by GEO Environmental Engineering August 
2021, received by the Local Planning Authority on the 10th August 2021, including the 
submission of a Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report to the Local Planning Authority 
for further approval. All mitigation measures identified must be maintained as such 
at all times thereafter. 
 
Reason  

 

To ensure the protection of controlled waters from potential land contamination. 

 

24. All HGV deliveries to the site must be carried out solely between the hours of 09:00 

and 17:00 Monday to Friday. There must be no HGV deliveries on Saturdays, Sundays 

and/or Bank Holidays. 

 

Reason  

 

In the interest of residential amenity.  

 

 

Page 33



 
 

 

25. Construction site operating hours will be Monday-Friday 08:00 to 18:00 and 

Saturdays 08:00 to 13:00. No construction on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

 

Reason  

 

In the interest of residential amenity.  

 

Informatives: 

1. If the public footpath is to be temporarily obstructed then a formal temporary 

closure will be required there is a 12 week lead in time for this process, for further 

information please contact Sandra.smith@cumbria.gov.uk. 

 

2. The proposed development appears to be within very close proximity to Electricity 

North West’s high and low voltage electricity distribution assets. The applicant 

should also be advised that, should there be a requirement to divert the apparatus 

because of the proposed works, the cost of such a diversion is usually borne by the 

applicant. The applicant should be aware of Electricity North West’s requirements 

for access to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair, or alter any of their distribution 

equipment. 

 

 

3. All external lighting must meet the guidelines and obtrusive limits details in the 

institute of lighting professionals Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive light 

(GN01:2011). 

 

4. The proposed development lies within a coal mining area which may contain 
unrecorded coal mining related hazards. If any coal mining feature is encountered 
during development, this should be reported immediately to the Coal Authority on 
0345 762 6848. 

 
Further information is also available on the Coal Authority website at: 
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority 
 
 

Statement  

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 

application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including planning 

policies and any representations that may have been received, and subsequently 

determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework.         

Page 34

mailto:Sandra.smith@cumbria.gov.uk
http://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-coal-authority


 

                                                                                  

To: PLANNING PANEL 

 

Date of Meeting: 19/01/2022 

Development Management Section 

  

 

 

Application Number:   4/20/2455/0F1 

Application Type:   Full : CBC 

Applicant:     Gleeson Homes 

Application Address:  LAND SOUTH OF WATERS EDGE CLOSE, KELLS, 

WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF 40 DWELLINGS 

Parish:    Whitehaven 

Recommendation Summary:   Approve subject to S106 

  

Page 35

Agenda Item 4b



 

Reason for Determination by Planning Panel 

The planning application is brought for consideration by Members of the Planning Panel as 

the Head of Planning and Place considers it to be of sufficient importance in planning terms 

to refer to the Planning Panel for determination; due to the level of public interest in the 

planning application; and, the requirement for a Section 106 Planning Obligation. 

 

Site and Location 

The Application Site comprises an area of previously developed and now vacant land 

extending to 1.37ha located to the south of Waters Edge Close, High Road, Whitehaven. 

The Site comprises part of the site of the now demolished clerical buildings and vehicle 

parking areas serving the former Marchon plant. 

The Application Site is bounded by Waters Edge Close to the north; the site of the former 

and now demolished Marchon plant to the south and west; and, High Road to the east. 

The Site is generally level, with some mounds of earth associated with demolition and 

clearance of the land and some hard surfacing present. 

 

Crown Copyright.  Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her 

Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to 

prosecution or civil proceedings. Copeland Borough Council Licence No. 100019619 (2005). 

Page 36



 

The Site is currently enclosed by herras fencing to prevent unauthorised access. 

The Site is located in Flood Zone 1. 
 
The Site is not within a conservation area and no Tree Preservation Orders exist. 
 
 
Proposal 
 
This application seeks Full Planning Permission for the erection of a combination of 40no. 
single storey and two storey detached and semi-detached dwellings. 
 
The proposed comprise: 

- 5no. two bedroom dwellings; 
- 9no. four bed dwellings; and,  
- 26no. three bed dwellings. 

 
The proposed development incorporates frontage dwellings to High Road with a clear 
hierarchy of streets within the development leading to a cul de sac and crescent of 
dwellings. Small areas of public open space exist to the central highway and a larger 
recreational public open space exists adjacent to the west boundary. 
 
Access to the development is principally proposed from a newly created priority junction 
from High Road and frontage accesses also onto High Road. 
 
The proposed dwellings are to be finished with a combination of red and buff brick under 
tile covered roof structures. 
 
A combination of brick walls and timber fences are proposed to the boundaries.  
 
Off highway parking spaces are proposed to each dwelling. 
 
A detailed scheme of landscaping is proposed for the public open spaces and front garden 
areas of the proposed dwellings. 
 
The proposed layout, highway design and drainage design have been amended during the 

course of the application in response to the comments of Officers and consultees. 

 

Relevant Planning Application History 

4/05/2888/0 – Outline application for residential development. Refused on grounds of 

conflict with the then prevailing employment-economic policies; exceedance of the then 

adopted housing targets, exacerbation of the then existing issues of low demand in this area 

of Whitehaven; and, the submission of insufficient information in respect of flood risk, 

drainage and land contamination. 

Page 37



4/11/2543/0F1 – Application for prior approval for demolition – Approved. 

 

Consultation Responses 

Town Council 

27th November 2021 and 8th December 2021 

No comments. 

 

Environment Agency 

8th December 2020 

We consider that the development design is based on an incomplete understanding of the 
distribution and status of contaminants and their risk to Controlled Waters. 
 
It should also be noted that the obsolete DEFRA guidance CLR11, referenced in the report 
was replaced on 8 October 2020 by Land Contamination Risk Management, and the Waste 
Acceptance Criteria testing (Appendix 9) was withdrawn on 30 January 2020. 
 
The Remedial Targets Methodology provides a tiered risk assessment to address risk to 
Controlled Waters, and should be used for this risk assessment.  
 
There is insufficient information to determine the leachable contaminant status of insitu 
made ground and soils (as per the tiered assessment) and therefore it is not possible to 
accept that the ground investigation report is representative of site conditions or should be 
used for deep foundation design without further lines of evidence.  
 
However, notwithstanding these concerns we consider that there is sufficient information 
presented here to provide confidence that the site can be developed. 
 
The proposed development site is contaminated land which has been designated as a 
special site under the Environmental protection Act 1990 part 2A The land formerly owned 
by Rhodia and operated by Huntsman has been the subject of remediation under a 
Remediation Statement. The land subject to the application for development has not been 
remediated. 
 
The previous use of the former Marchon chemical works presents a medium risk of 
contamination that could be mobilised during construction to pollute controlled waters. 
Controlled waters are particularly sensitive in this location because the proposed 
development site is located upon a secondary aquifer A and in close proximity to the Irish 
Sea. 
 
The application’s Phase 1 & 2 Geoenvironmental Investigation demonstrates that it will be 
possible to manage the risks posed to controlled waters by this development. Further 
detailed information will however be required before built development is undertaken. We 

Page 38



believe that it would not place an unreasonable burden on the developer to ask for more 
detailed information prior to the granting of planning permission but respect that this is a 
decision for the local planning authority. 
 
In light of the above, the proposed development will be acceptable if a planning condition is 
included requiring the submission of a remediation strategy. This should be carried out by a 
competent person in line with paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
Without these conditions we would object to the proposal in line with paragraph 170 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework because it cannot be guaranteed that the development 
will not be put at unacceptable risk from, or be adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of 
water pollution. 
  
Piling using penetrative methods can result in risk of mobilising contamination, drilling 
through different lithology and creating preferential pathways. Groundwater is particularly 
sensitive in this location because the proposed development site is located upon secondary 
aquifer A .The proposed development will only be acceptable if a planning condition 
endorsing protection of the aquifer is imposed. Without this condition we would object to 
the proposal in line with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework because 
it cannot be guaranteed that the development will not present unacceptable risks to 
groundwater resources. 
 
12th July 2021, 18th October 2021 and 18th November 2021 
 
We have no objection to the proposed amendments as submitted.  
 
The amendments do not materially affect the site constraints that are of relevance to the 
remit of the Environment Agency (contaminated land) and our previous response still 
applies (ref NO/2020/113115/01 dated 8/12/2020). 
 
 
Cumbria County Council – Countryside Access 

13th July 2021 and 23rd August 2021 
 
Public Footpath 431037 follows an alignment to the west of the proposed development and 

must not be altered or obstructed before or after the development has been completed. 

If the footpath is to be temporarily obstructed then a formal temporary closure will be 

required there is a 12 week lead in time for this process. 

28th October 2021 and 1st December 2021 
 
No comments to submit on the amended details. 
 

Cumbria County Council – LLFA and Highways 

2nd December 2020 

Page 39



Highways 

- No visibility splays have been detailed on a scaled plan for the new entrance, the site 

entrance proposed does not appear to use the existing historical entrance, the applicant 

needs to demonstrate they can achieve 2.4 x 60m visibility to the nearside kerb in both 

directions, unless a speed survey is provided to establish the 85th percentile. 

- The frontage footway on High Rd appears to have been removed and replaced with 

driveways for plots 3-8 as presented on Site Plan 1839/001, new footways to the site should 

link in to existing footways and be continuous along the frontage of High Rd to allow for 

pedestrian movement. 

- There are no service strips/margins, kerb radius, road widths, pedestrian crossing points 

detailed within the site plan, an early indication of street lighting layout would also be 

welcomed, I would direct the developer to consult Appendix 4 Highways of the CDDG when 

considering the above points. 

- Forward visibility should be considered, as presented, from the site entrance there is 

approx. 80m of forward visibility due to the straight length of highway, this may encourage 

speeding. 

- Shared surfaces should be detailed on the hard surfaces plan, as presented it is difficult to 

determine where the shared surfaces begin and end, there should be a raised transition 

from c/way to shared surface and footways should end at the transition so pedestrians can 

move seamlessly without walking in the c/way. 

- Bin storage needs to be provided for plots 27-29, 31-32, 18-20 & 13-15 given the layout, 

see Fig T1 & T3 of CDDG for maximum reversing length expected for refuse wagon (T1) and 

length resident is expected to move a refuse bin (T3) 

- Visitor parking is shown to provided by on-street parking, the applicant needs to consider 

the chosen road width and how practical on street parking will be, as footways will become 

the default location, visitor parking can be provided in the form of lay-by's however it 

cannot be signed as such on the public highway. 

- Parking at plots 13, 29, 32 is impractical and needs to be re-thought. 

LLFA 

- No drainage strategy has been provided, this should detail drainage calculations, 

contributing areas plan showing surface water within the boundary and also externally if 

applicable, demonstrate the drainage hierarchy has been considered and should also 

consider use of SuDs, for the avoidance of doubt, climate change is to be calculated at 40%, 

CV levels = 1 and 10% included for urban creep. 

- No details of ground investigations have been provided to rule out suitability for 

infiltration of surface water in line with the drainage hierarchy I would suggest a BRE 365 

test to confirm suitability, although indications suggest high ground water levels which 

should be confirmed in the drainage strategy. 

Page 40



- The drainage layout shows the surface water draining to an existing surface water manhole 

to the north of the site, the applicant needs to confirm where this manhole drains too and 

that it is in suitable condition a cctv survey needs to be undertaken and provided to the LPA 

this recommended at 2.6.1 in the FRA. 

- It is likely that surface water leaving the site will drain through the public surface water 

sewer (3rd party agreement will be required and discharge rate agreed) in close proximity to 

the site before outfalling to a water course leading to the Irish Sea, treatment of the surface 

water needs to be considered inline with requirements in NPPF, I would suggest permeable 

paving to the private driveways be considered. 

- C/way drainage/gullies have not been detailed. 

- As there are concerns for ground water, the size and depth of the attenuation storage, has 

buoyancy been considered? Also there is no maintenance access track detailed for the tank. 

- No details of exceedance routes for events beyond 1 in 100 yr +40% CC have been 

provided, these need to be detailed on a plan. 

- No maintenance plan has been provided for the surface water system.  

Upon receipt of the above information I will be better placed to give my full response. 

 

26th January 2021 

LLFA 

In light of Drainage Strategy T19360/DS/01/JP being submitted further information and 

clarification is required for the following points; 

- The drainage strategy for this development proposes to connect into the existing manhole 

within the redline boundary which connects to the Story Homes site just to the north at a 

rate of 6l/s, to facilitate this there is requirement to construct extra manholes and a shallow 

basin within Phase 2 POS of the existing Story site all of which will be subject to approval 

with United Utilities as there is requirement to have the systems adopted under S104 and 

possibly require planning consent as the proposals are not within the red line boundary of 

this application, please confirm agreements with UU and clarify if planning consent is 

required for the shallow basin and drainage alterations in the POS area of Phase 2 Waters 

Edge Close. 

- Climate change needs to be calculated at 40% rather than the 30% used, CV levels should 

be set to 1. 

- C/way drainage/gullies have not been detailed. 

- As there are concerns for ground water, the size and depth of the attenuation storage, has 

buoyancy been considered? Also there is no maintenance access track detailed for the tank. 

Page 41



- No details of exceedance routes for events beyond 1 in 100 yr +40% CC have been 

provided, these need to be detailed on a plan. 

- No maintenance plan has been provided for parts of the surface water system that are to 

remain private. 

Upon receipt of the above information i will better placed to give a full response. 

 

27th July 2021 

Highways 

- Visibility splays have been detailed on a incomplete scaled plan (Doc 

T19360/A1/202/RevD) the plan needs to detail the existing carriageway and development 

frontage, furthermore the splay looking south is noted at 40.4m unless a speed survey has 

been provided to establish the 85th a splay of 60m is required as presented on above plan 

the visibility splays are not acceptable. 

- There are no service strips/margins, kerb radius, road widths, detailed within the site plan, 

I would direct the developer to consult Appendix 4 Highways of the CDDG when considering 

the above points. 

- Shared surfaces should be detailed on the hard surfaces plan, as presented it is difficult to 

determine where the shared surfaces begin and end, within Doc T19360/A1/202/RevD 

Section 38 there appears to be a raised table in place to slow vehicles down given the 

forward visibility in this area, Road B on the plan has a footway that ends at plot 10 if this is 

to be a shared surface then the table should be extended down to Road C hammerhead, the 

footway at plot 9 needs to remain in place. 

- A footway needs to be included at plot 26 to allow pedestrian movement from plots 26-29 

- When individual plans are amended after comments received from consul tees all 

associated plans ie hard surfaces, proposed site layout etc must be updated to align to avoid 

confusion. 

LLFA 

- The drainage strategy for this development proposes to connect into the existing manhole 

within the redline boundary which connects to the Story Homes site just to the north at a 

rate of 6l/s, to facilitate this there is requirement to construct extra manholes and a shallow 

basin within Phase 1 POS of the existing Story site all of which will be subject to approval 

with United Utilities as there is requirement to have the systems adopted under S104 and 

possibly require planning consent as the proposals are not within the red line boundary of 

this application, please confirm agreements with UU and clarify if planning consent is 

required for the shallow basin and drainage alterations in the POS area of Phase 1 Waters 

Edge Close. 

- The proposed holding basin plan shows a depth of 300m this needs to be clarified. 

Page 42



- No detailed plan has been provided showing the connection from the proposed 

development into the existing Story Homes site a detailed plan is required to demonstrate 

how manhole 9A will feed into the basin, currently manhole 9A does not appear detailed on 

any plans  

- New Manhole 9A is showing a flood at 29.0755m3 for 100yr+30% can this be confirmed as 

correct? if calculations are correct how will this be managed. Climate change needs to be 

calculated at 40% rather than the 30% used, CV levels should be set to 1. 

- Exceedance routes are shown and in the unlikely case of extreme events it states that the 

flows will be directed down the existing soft landscaped areas towards further greenfield 

land to the south. However, the plan shows an exit point at the north west corner and at the 

south west corner. The latter of which appears to direct flows towards High Road. Can this 

be clarified, with the plan indicating where the offsite exceedance will go? 

- No maintenance plan has been provided for parts of the surface water system that are to 

remain private. 

Upon receipt of the above information I will be better placed to give my full response. 

 
1st September 2021 
 
Highways 

- Visibility splays have been detailed on a incomplete scaled plan (Doc 

T19360/A1/202/RevD) the plan needs to detail the existing carriageway and existing 

development frontage to show no obstructions as presented on above plan the visibility 

splays are not acceptable. 

- Service strips/margins have been updated on the plan, but show grass verge in front of 

plots 10,11,12,15,16,17,21,22,23,24 and 25 with no detail on how vehicles will access the 

driveways to the property's listed above. 

- Shared surfaces has now been detailed on the hard surfaces plan showing the shared 

surface continuing down to the hammer head on road C, looking at the the new plan the 

dropped access outside plot 9 highlighted in red can now be removed but the footway 

around the radius needs to stay in its proposed location shown on the plan. 

Upon receipt of the above information I will be better placed to give my full response. 
 

LLFA 

- The drainage strategy for this development proposes to connect into the existing manhole 

within the redline boundary which connects to the Story Homes site just to the north at a 

rate of 6l/s, to facilitate this there is requirement to construct extra manholes and a shallow 

basin within Phase 1 POS of the existing Story site all of which will be subject to approval 

with United Utilities as there is requirement to have the systems adopted under S104 and 

Page 43



possibly require planning consent as the proposals requires the movement of existing 

drainage system to allow the installation of the new Basin.as not within the red line 

boundary of this application, please confirm agreements with UU and clarify if planning 

consent is required for the shallow basin and the removal and redirection of the existing 

drainage system which is within the POS area of Phase 1 Waters Edge Close. 

- Proposed attenuation basin plan within the drainage strategy is still showing the depth of 

the Basin at 300m. 

- No detailed plan has been provided showing the connection from the proposed 

development into the existing Story Homes site a detailed plan is required to demonstrate 

how manhole 9A and any alterations to existing drainage systems will connect into the 

basin, currently there is no detail on how the new proposed drainage system will connect to 

the existing United utilities adopted systems these details need to be provided. 

- The calculations for new Manhole 9A which were requested by Storys Homes is showing a 

flood at 29.0755m3 for 100yr+30% can this be confirmed as correct? if calculations are 

correct how will this be managed. 

Climate change needs to be calculated at 40% rather than the 30% used, CV levels should be 

set to 1. 

- Exceedance routes are shown and in the unlikely case of extreme events it states that the 

flows will be directed down the existing soft landscaped areas towards further greenfield 

land to the south. However, the plan shows an exit point at the north west corner and at the 

south west corner. The latter of which appears to direct flows towards High Road. Can this 

be clarified, with the plan indicating where the offsite exceedance will go? 

- Until United Utilities take control of the surface water system through a section 104 

agreement a maintenance schedule will need to be provided. 

Until the applicant can provide a plan of all proposed drainage from the new development 

site to the existing surface water system within the Storys Home site including the proposed 

attenuation basin and alterations to existing adopted surface water system we as LLFA can 

not make further comment on the proposed application. 

 

19th October 2021 

Highways 

- Visibility splays have now been demonstrated on the scaled plan (Doc 

T19360/A1/201/RevF) submitted October 2021. 

- Service strips/margins have now been updated on the plan (DOC T19360/A1/204/ RevG) 

submitted October 2021. 

Page 44



- Shared surfaces has now been detailed on the hard surfaces plan showing the shared 

surface continuing down to the hammer head on road C, (DOC T19360/A1/204/ RevG) 

submitted October 2021 

With all the above points now been demonstrated we as the LHA are content with the 

points raised on the previous response Dated 01/09/21 

- With reviewing the new documents submitted in October 2021 and cross referencing with 

previous documents it has came to light that visitor parking within site has been identified 

but has not been demonstrated on the parking layout (Drawing number 003 rev d). A 

designated parking area within the site needs to be shown within this plan. The 8 Visitor 

parking spaces identified can not be included within the proposed units parking area or 

garage as these are not accessible to all visitors to the site. It is requested a new parking 

layout drawing is submitted including visitor parking. 

LLFA 

The redesign of the surface water sewer from the proposed site to the existing Story site is 

welcomed by the LLFA. 

A new drainage plan submitted in October 2021 shows connection to the existing system 

within the Story and it is now clear how the two systems will combine, 

With the redesign of the surface water sewer all bar one point raised on the previous 

response dated 01/09/21 need not be considered as the new design eliminates these 

problems. 

Consideration still needs to be taken with the below point which was included with the LLFA 

response dated 01/09/21 as this has not been answered within the latest documents 

submitted in October 2021. 

- Exceedance routes are shown in the unlikely case of extreme events it states that the flows 

will be directed down the existing soft landscaped areas towards further greenfield land to 

the south. However, the plan shows an exit point at the north west corner and at the south 

west corner. The latter of which appears to direct flows towards High Road. Can this be 

clarified, with the plan indicating where the offsite exceedance will go? 

Further points identified within the new documents submitted in October 2021. 

- Has 10% for urban creep been considered within the new drainage calculations. 

- The drainage calculations for a 1 in 100 year storm event shows flooding at manhole S1 

and S14 within the existing Story site, Manhole S14 is to mitigated with the installation of a 

new attenuation tank. Within the original drainage calculations for the existing story site did 

manhole S1 show flooding ? Or is the flooding due to the increased surface water from the 

proposed site. how is the flood at manhole S1 to be mitigated. 

 

14th December 2021 

Page 45



With additional information being submitted on the 26/11/21 regarding concerns raised 

with proposed exceedance routes within the development site can now confirm that no 

objections to the proposal, subject to the imposition of planning conditions. 

 

Copeland Borough Council – Flood and Coastal Defence Engineer 

8th December 2020 

There is at present a lack of a drainage strategy, therefore I am objecting to the proposed 

development. 

There is a drainage layout plan, which shows both the foul sewage and surface water going 

to existing manholes at the north west corner of the site. 

There is no indication as to where these manholes go. 

There is no indication as to the design used for the surface water system – does it have a 

10% allowance for urban creep and 40% for climate change? 

It is unlikely that disposal by means of infiltration will be suitable, as the FRA states that 

shallow groundwater was encountered. 

Given the former use of the site, mobilisation of contaminants is not desirable. 

Ideally, given the site’s location, disposal of surface water to the sea would be the preferred 

solution. 

 

13th January 2021 

I’ve looked through the attached Drainage Strategy and generally I’ve no major concerns 

about the proposed development. 

However, I do have a couple of queries/comments: 

 Why is a climate change figure of 30% being used, when the normal figure is 40%? 

 Will this actually make any difference given the restricted rate of 6l/sec leaving site 
(to Phase 1)? 

 There will be some surcharging in a 1 in 1 year event in Phase 1 (Story site), at a new 
manhole to be constructed.  This doesn’t comply with the aims of drainage design, 
i.e. no surcharging in a 1 in 100 year event.  This really is up to United Utilities, as the 
Phase 1 sewers are going through the adoption process. 

 Is there any indication of exceedance routes?  I note that some Finished Floor Levels 
are below the adjacent road levels, so in the event of exceedance water needs to be 
kept away from such properties. 

 

Ultimately, as both the surface water and foul sewage systems are proposed for adoption, it 

should be for United Utilities to determine whether the proposed systems are suitable. 

Page 46



Should United Utilities accept the proposed designs as suitable, I would have no objection to 

the proposed development. 

 

23rd July 2021 

With regards to the revisions to this application, these answer some of my previous queries, 

but not all and raise another question: 

 There is still some surcharging in the 1 in 1 year event, which I understand does not 
conform to guidance.  The surcharging is actually all in the Phase 1 (Story Homes) 
part of the site in the, which is currently going through the adoption process.  Is this 
something that United Utilities have agreed to accept? 

 Exceedance routes are shown and in the unlikely case of extreme events it states 
that the flows will be directed sown the existing soft landscaped areas towards 
further greenfield land to the south.  However, the plan shows an exit point at the 
north west corner and at the south west corner.  The latter of which appears to 
direct flows towards High Road.  Can this be clarified, with the plan indicating where 
the offsite exceedance will go? 

 

24th August 2021 

I still remain confused over this application, with regards to proposed drainage in how it will 

affect Phase 1 (and its adoption, as it appears Phase 2 wasn’t considered in the Phase 1 

design) and exceedance. 

United Utilities have advised that the present system (Phase 1) should not be altered as it 

may render any legal agreements null and void.  However, there is a problem here in that 

the proposed new basin in Phase 1 would require the diversion of two pipes as they cannot 

be under / near the storage basin.  Therefore, either the storage basin can’t be where it is 

proposed, or a new adoption agreement will be needed.  The storage basin is also outside 

the redline boundary, so how will that work?  With regards to my first point, the latest info 

does show one instance of surcharging in a 1 in 2 year event (no 1 in 1 year event figures 

supplied). 

Confusingly there are two drawings within the Drainage Strategy showing a different layout, 

which has confused me when reading to the text and then referring to the wrong drawing 

(Story Homes S/W Drainage Appraisal) as the manholes and plots are numbered 

differently).  The original point, I’ve raised still remains, as it shows exceedance flows from 

the north west corner heading west. The spills to the south west (from manhole MHS9) is 

shown heading through plots 7, 8 & 13 and text states that this heads into High Road, where 

water will be taken by the gullies.  Has this been approved by Cumbria Highways?  If there is 

an exceedance event on site and water flows onto High Road has capacity in the gullies 

been confirmed? 

 

Page 47



12th October 2021 

The further modifications to the existing drainage system for the Story Homes site are 

design to prevent flooding during a 1 in 100 year event with a 40% climate change 

allowance, when the Gleeson development is joined to the existing system. 

The modification is the inclusion of a new manhole with an off line cellular storage system, 

which at the time of writing of the submission, would not be adopted by United Utilities. 

The existing system serving the Story Home site is going through the process of adoption by 

United Utilities. 

I have asked the question a number of times, but it still isn’t clear, as to whether changes 

occurring due to the Gleeson development will affected the adoption of the Story Home 

system? 

With regards to the actual proposed alterations, I have no concerns. 

 

 29th November 2021 

This application continues to have amendments sent in, to which I have no major concerns. 

Any I did have about exceedance routs have now been addressed. 

However, I still do not appear to get any clarification on the point I continuously raise about 

the adoption of the surface water sewers on Phase 1 (Storey Homes) site. 

I have been asking if the changes to the system to accommodate Phase 2 will affect it’s 

adoption. 

 

Cumbria County Council – Education 

Formal comments awaited at the time of writing. 

 

Arboricultual Consultant 

10th December 2020, 16th July 2021, 25th August 2021 and 20th October 2021 

The site is a derelict area of land which is part of a former coal mine site. There are no trees 

of importance on the site. A few trees are adjacent the site that could be adversely affected 

by the proposal. However, details of how these can if necessary, be protected are contained 

within the landscape and Maintenance Management Plan dated 28/11/2020. These 

proposals are sufficient to protect the trees.  

A landscaping scheme and management plan have been submitted as part of the proposal. 

These are acceptable. 

Page 48



The landscaping plans and maintenance and management plan should be included in the 

approved documents that the development must be built to. 

 

Copeland Borough Council – Environmental Health 

29th January 2021 

The development site was part of the wider Marchon chemical works that was determined 
as contaminated land under Part 2A due to contamination of controlled waters. 
 
Going over the site investigation I can confirm that I have no objection to the development 
going ahead and support the Environment Agency's position from their letter of 8 December 
2020. 
 
The site investigation found a number of contaminants that could impact human health and 
building materials. The made ground contained elevated sulphate, the former tank area had 
elevated PAHs, there were elevated petroleum hydrocarbons around TP6 and some 
asbestos was detected. There was also elevated levels of CO2 detected during the ground 
gas monitoring. 
 
The mitigation methods recommended are all reasonable approaches to protecting human 
health and should be carried out as detailed in the site investigation. The mitigation 
measures are: using a clean cover system, including an anti-dig layer; using sulphate 
resistant concrete for sub-surface structures; using hydrocarbon resistant water supply 
pipes; removing the stockpiles from site; and incorporating gas protection measures into the 
build. 
 
While the recommended works help mitigate the risk to human health there is still a need 
to show that controlled waters will not be impacted, this is particularly important due to the 
previous Part 2A designation and a key reason for the EA's requested conditions. These 
conditions are for additional site investigation work focussed on the risk to onsite and 
offsite controlled waters, a remediation strategy and verification works, and a risk 
assessment on the potential for piling operations to affect controlled waters. These 
conditions are detailed in full in the EA's letter of 8 December 2020. I would note that the 
remediation strategy would incorporate the existing recommendations. 
 

1st November 2021 

No objections and no comments 

 

United Utilities 

7th December 2020, 16th July 2021 and 31st August 2021 

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National 

Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 

Page 49



foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 

way. 

Request that three planning conditions are imposed on any planning permission requiring 

that: no development commence until a detailed drainage scheme has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the local planning authority that is evidenced as being in 

accordance with the hierarchy of drainage options; that foul and surface water be drained 

on separate systems; and, prior to occupation a sustainable drainage management and 

maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 

planning authority and agreed in writing. 

 

18th October 2021 

Following our review of the submission, we have no objection to the proposal providing that 

the site drainage is in line with the agreed drainage proposal of the whole development. 

We recommend the Lead Local Flood Authority along with any other statutory consultee, is 

also consulted on the proposal 

 

22nd November 2021 

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National 

Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with 

foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 

way. 

Request that three planning conditions are imposed on any planning permission requiring 

that: no development commence until a detailed drainage scheme has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the local planning authority that is evidenced as being in 

accordance with the hierarchy of drainage options; that foul and surface water be drained 

on separate systems; and, prior to occupation a sustainable drainage management and 

maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 

planning authority and agreed in writing. 

 

Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service 

29th December 2021, 14th July 2021, 24th August 2021, 8th October 2021 and 26th November 

2021 

No objections. 

Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service is committed to reducing the impact of fire on people, 
property and the environment. For this reason, it is recommended that the applicant should 
give consideration to the inclusion of a sprinkler system within the design of the premises. 
 

Page 50



Copeland Strategic Housing 

19th November 2021 

This is an application from Gleeson Homes for a 40 dwelling development, comprising:  

 5 x 2 bedroom homes (4 affordable, 1 Market) 

 26 x 3 bedroom homes (all market sale) 

 9 x 4 bedroom homes (all market sale) 
 

We welcome the inclusion of bungalows on the development as these are always in demand 

across all demographics and contribute to a more diverse housing offer, aligning with our 

Housing Strategy 2018/2023. 

The location of the development is in a popular area of Whitehaven, where there has been 

significant new housing investment in the last few years. Based on the evidence within the 

SHMA and Housing Needs Survey report we would challenge the mix of 2 and 3 bedroomed 

dwellings, on the basis that the need for 2 bedroom properties is greater than reflected.  

We welcome that 4 of the 2 bedroom properties are designated for affordable sale as our 

evidence base shows that whilst Copeland as a borough has residents who earn high 

salaries, many young people and newly forming households on lower incomes are leaving as 

they cannot afford what the market is currently offering in both sale and rental markets. We 

would welcome a conversation with the developer to ensure that they are genuinely 

affordable to this market. 

 

19th July 2021, 23rd August 2021, 12th October 2021 and 17th November 2021 

No further comments from Strategic Housing 

 

Public Representations 

The application has been advertised by way of a site notice, press notice and neighbour 

notification letters sent to 31no. properties. 

Representations have been received from 12no. parties in objection, 1no. party in support 

and 1no. party in neutrality. 

The material planning issues raised comprise the following: 

Principle 

It is understood that additional housing is needed. 

There is no need for additional housing in Whitehaven.  

There are already enough new build dwellings on Kells. 

Page 51



Marchon and the surrounding paths/cliffs are an important open space, which is important 

to the mental health of local people. 

What has happened to the proposal to change Marchon to a nature reserve? 

The proposed development is in conflict with the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028, which 

promotes the need to protect the intrinsic qualities of the heritage coast from development 

proposals. 

Drainage and Flood Risk 

The land all around Kells is prone to flooding.  

Efforts have been made to drain areas including more recently on land adjacent to the 

Application Site, which continues to flood. The surface water from the proposed 

development will exacerbate this existing situation.  

 
The disposal of surface water from the proposed development to land that already floods 
will cause additional ecological damage. 
 
The drainage infrastructure serving Waters Edge is not fit for purpose and has been repaired 
multiple times. 
 

Highways 

Traffic on Snaefell terrace has not been taken into consideration in the assessment of the 

proposed development. 

The proposed development will exacerbate the existing parking and traffic issues on High 

Road, which already accommodates a significant number of parked vehicles and is 

extremely busy at commuting and school collection times. 

The proposed development in conjunction with the proposed mine and approved Edgehill 

Park development will result in no space being available for parking on High Road. 

The additional traffic from the proposed development will result in increased risk of 

accidents. 

Speeding is an issue on Kells.  

There is at least two accidents a week at the junction with Ennerdale Terrace. 

Education 

The existing schools will not be able to cope with the additional demand for school places 

created by the proposed development. At present, there are families on the 

Woodhouse/Kells estate having to take students to schools either on Mirehouse or beyond 

due to Kells Infants, St Mary’s and Monkwray being oversubscribed. 

Page 52



In 2010, it was promised that the Application Site would be the site of a new primary school 

and a park to walk in for residents. 

Ecology 

We are running out of natural habitats. On a global level the natural habitats of wildlife and 
plants are constantly being destroyed for development.  
The fields and cliffs in the area provide a refuge for birds, small mammals, residents and 

visitors.  

The wildlife needs to be taken into account.  

The area in question may appear poor for wildlife and plant life but it has a wealth of both 
these on closer inspection including butterflies, caterpillars, lizard, barn owls and common 
plants. The land should be preserved and allowed to re -wild and be enjoyed by all. 
 
Amenity 

The proposed development will result in overlooking of existing dwellings. 
 
Air and noise pollution would be damaging throughout the construction period.  
 
Once the dwellings are constructed, additional air pollution in the form of dangerous gases 
from additional vehicles will occur. 
 
The Application Site is presently enclosed by an eyesore of a green metal fence and is an 
overgrown waste land. It is considered that the drawings do not clearly show how this 
development is going to affect views from existing dwellings. 
 
Tourism  

The Application Site is adjacent to the coastal footpath which is to encourage tourism to 

grow in the Whitehaven area. Building houses will impact the views and the sense of peace 

despite being so close to an urban area. 

 

Planning Policy 

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in 

accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

Development Plan: 
 
Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028 (Adopted December 2013)(CS): 

Core Strategy (CS): 

Policy ST1 – Strategic Development Principles  

Policy ST2 – Spatial Development Strategy  

Page 53



Policy SS4 – Community and Cultural Facilities and Services 

Policy ER7 – Principal Town Centre, Key Service Centres, Local Services Centres and other 

service areas: Roles and Functions 

Policy T1 – Improving Accessibility and Transport 

Policy ENV1 – Flood Risk and Risk Management 

Policy ENV3 – Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

Policy ENV5 – Protecting and Enhancing the Borough’s Landscapes  

Development Management Policies (DMP): 

Policy DM10 – Achieving Quality of Place  

Policy DM11 – Sustainable Development Standards  

Policy DM22 – Accessible Developments 

Policy DM24 – Development Proposals and Flood Risk 

Policy DM25 – Protecting Nature Conservation Sites, Habitats and Species  

Policy DM26 - Landscaping 

Copeland Local Plan 2001-2016 (LP): 

Saved Policy TSP8 - Parking Requirements 

 

Other Material Planning Considerations 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG). 

The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (CHSR). 

Cumbria Development Design Guide (CDDG). 

Emerging Copeland Local Plan 2017-2035 (ELP). 

The ELP was the subject of a Preferred Options Consultation. The Preferred Options 

Consultation builds upon the completed Issues and Options Consultation, which finished in 

January 2020. A focused pre-publication draft consultation is currently ongoing before a full 

consultation on the publication draft is completed later in 2022. Given the stage of 

preparation, the ELP has only limited weight in decision making, but provides an indication 

of the direction of travel of the emerging planning policies, which themselves have been 

developed in accordance with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

 

Page 54



Assessment 

Principle; 

Policy SS1 states the Council will work to make Copeland a more attractive place to build 

homes and to live in them, by allocating housing sites to meet local needs in locations 

attractive to house builders and requiring new development to be designed and built to a 

high standard. 

Policy ST2 identifies Whitehaven as the Principal Town.  

Policy ST2 states that the Principal Town will comprise the focus for the largest scale 

development, regeneration and important development opportunities. This includes 

allocation in the form of estate-scale development where appropriate, potentially including 

extensions to the town’s settlement boundary. 

Policy SS2 states that house building to meet the needs of the community and to 

accommodate growth will be provided for by: allocating sufficient land for new housing 

development to meet identified requirements within the Borough; seeking densities over 30 

dwellings per hectare, with detailed density requirements determined in relation to the 

character and sustainability of the surrounding areas as well as design considerations; and, 

seeking to achieve 50% of new housing development on previously developed sites. 

The Application Site is located within the settlement boundary for Whitehaven as defined in 

Policy ST2 of the CS. 

The Application Site is allocated as an Employment Opportunity Site in in the LP and CS. The 

LP defines Employment Opportunity Sites as areas that are being investigated as to their 

future development potential and contribution they can make to the regeneration 

strategies in the Borough. Crucially, whilst identified as Employment Opportunity Sites, the 

provisions of the LP and CS do not limit use to or specifically allocate these sites for 

employment uses. 

The Application Site is proposed for allocation for residential development in the ELP. 

Policy ST2 of the CS directs 45% of housing development to the Principal Town of 

Whitehaven, equating to 105 homes per annum in Whitehaven for the first five years of the 

CS plan period and 135 homes per annum for the remainder.  

Draft Policy H4PO of the ELP directs a minimum of 1,440 dwellings to Whitehaven over the 

ELP plan period.  

 

Housing Need and Housing Mix; 

Policy SS3 of the CS states that applications for housing development should demonstrate 

how the proposals help to deliver a range of good quality and affordable homes for 

everyone. It is confirmed that development proposals will be assessed according to how 

well they meet the identified need and aspirations of the Borough’s individual Housing 

Page 55



Market Areas as set out in the Strategic Housing Market Assessment including: creating a 

more balanced mix of housing types and tenures within the housing market area; including 

a proportion of affordable housing that makes the maximum contribution to meeting the 

identified needs in the housing market areas; and, establishing a supply of sites suitable for 

executive and high quality family housing, focussing on Whitehaven and its fringes as a 

priority. 

Policy H8PO of the ELP states on sites of 10 units or more… at least 10% of the homes 

provided should be affordable as defined in the NPPF 2019 (or any document that replaces 

it) unless: 1) this would exceed the level of affordable housing required in the area as 

identified in the Housing Needs Study; or 2) The development falls into an exemption 

category listed in the NPPF. This aligns with the provisions of Paragraph 65 of the NPPF. 

The provisions of the SS3 of the CS were adopted in 2013 prior to the adoption of the NPPF, 

which is a material planning consideration to be given significant weight in decision taking. 

The Copeland Housing Needs Assessment 2020 (CHNS) outlines that of an assessment of 

248 movers in Whitehaven, 37% require a two bedroom property and 35% require a three 

bedroom property. A 41% demand for detached properties and 34% for semi- detached was 

identified. The Applicant does not appear to have directly taken the CHNS into consideration 

in the development of the housing mix proposed; however, the proposed will in broad 

terms contribute to meeting the identified needs. 

A total of four affordable ownership homes are proposed comprising two 2no. bedroom 

houses and 2no. two bedroom bungalows. This equates to the delivery of 10% of the 

development as is required by Policy H8PO of the ELP and the NPPF. 

The details of the relevant discount etc. to be applied to the affordable ownership will be in 

accordable with the definitions in the NPPF, with the relevant details determined and 

secured through the required Section 106 Agreement. 

 

Settlement Character, Landscape Character and Visual Impact 

Policy ENV2 of the CS seek to reinforce the Coastal Zone’s assets and opportunities 

including: promoting the developed coast as a destination for leisure, culture and tourism, 

with strong links to Whitehaven Harbour / town centre in the north; maximise opportunities 

along the undeveloped coast for tourism and outdoor recreation through support for the 

North West Coastal Trail and Colourful Coast projects; and, support the management of 

more of the undeveloped coast for biodiversity. It is confirmed that negative impacts must 

be mitigated against and compensated. 

Policy ENV5 of the CS states that the Borough’s landscapes will be protected and enhanced 

by: protecting all landscapes from inappropriate change by ensuring that the development 

does not threaten or detract from the distinctive characteristics of that particular area; that 

where the benefits of the development outweigh the potential harm, ensuring that the 

impact of the development on the landscape is minimised through adequate mitigation, 

Page 56



preferably on-site; and, supporting proposals which enhance the value of the Borough’s 

landscapes. 

Policy DM10 of the CS requires a high standard of design and the fostering of quality places 

including: responding positively to the character of the site and the immediate and wider 

setting and enhance local distinctiveness. 

Policy DM12 requires a minimum of 0.4ha of public space for every 200 dwellings pro-rata 

on developments of 10 or more dwellings and in groups of family housing a minimum of 

100m2 of children’s play space should be provided at the rate of one play space per 30/40 

dwellings. 

Heritage coasts were established to conserve the best stretches of undeveloped coast in 

England. Paragraph 178 of the NPPF requires that planning policies and decisions should be 

consistent with the special character of heritage coasts and the importance of its 

conservation. 

The Application Site comprises previously developed land, being part of the site of the now 

demolished clerical buildings and vehicle parking areas serving the former Marchon plant.  

The Application Site is bounded by Waters Edge Close to the north; the site of the former 

and now demolished Marchon plant to the south and west; and, High Road to the east. 

The Application Site is not located within the defined St Bees Head Heritage Coast or 

proposed St Bees and Whitehaven Heritage Coast; however, does comprise part of their 

wider setting. 

The Application Site is well related to the existing residential development of Waters Edge 

Close to the north and is viewed in the context of the exiting residential development to the 

east.  

The Application Site projects into an area that is currently clear of development following 

demolition; however, it does represent a significant intrusion, being a reasonably logical 

extension of the existing developed form.  

Whilst the proposed development would result in changes in views from the immediate 

surroundings and from certain areas within the defined St Bees Head Heritage Coast or 

proposed St Bees and Whitehaven Heritage Coast, the impacts of these changes would not 

be significant or unacceptably harmful given the form of the development and existing 

developed context. 

The proposed layout has been designed to respond to the characteristics and constraints of 

the Application Site and the surrounding development. 

The proposed development incorporates frontage dwellings to High Road including single 
storey dwellings and corner turning feature dwellings consistent with the existing 
development on Waters Edge Close to the north.  
 

Page 57



A clear hierarchy of streets is proposed within the development leading to a cul de sac and 
crescent of dwellings with view facing towards to the coast, again consistent with the 
existing development on Waters Edge Close to the north.  
 
Small areas of public open space exist to the central highway and a larger recreational public 
open space exists adjacent to the west boundary from which view exists towards to the 
coast. The proposed level of open space provision accords with the requirements of Policy 
DM12. A planning condition is proposed to secure details of the required children’s play 
space as also required by Policy DM12. 
 
The proposed dwellings are simple in design; however, incorporate some vernacular 
features. It is proposed to finished the dwellings with a combination of red and buff brick 
under tile covered roof structures. Given the significant variety of dwellings designs and 
forms within the wider locality, the proposed dwelling designs and materials are not 
considered inappropriate in this context. 
 
A combination of brick walls and timber fences are proposed to the plot boundaries. Brick 
walls are proposed on key boundaries along the central highway, with timber fences 
proposed elsewhere which is not inappropriate in context. Open boundaries are proposed 
to Highway Road and to the open space to the west of the Application Site. 
 

Ecology 

Policy ENV3 seeks to ensure that new development will protect and enhance biodiversity 

and geodiversity. 

A Preliminary Phase 1 Ecological Survey and associated species-specific surveys have been 

submitted in support of the planning application and provide an assessment of the 

ecological impacts of the development. 

The Preliminary Phase 1 Ecological Survey concludes that there are no significant ecological 

constraints on the Application Site, that the St Bees Head SSSI and Cumbria Wildlife Sites are 

too distant for adverse impacts upon the seabird colonies or vegetation. It is confirmed that 

there is no red squirrel habitat on the site and no evidence of badger activity; however, 

there is a small possibility that reptiles such as slow-worm and common lizard may have 

colonised the grassland from their established sites to the south-west. 

A Reptile Survey of the Application Site has been completed. The Survey identified ‘low 

population’ size classes of both slow worm and common lizards on the Application Site. It is 

concluded that the Application Site itself is not considered to be within the core range of the 

population which occurs within natural and semi-natural grasslands to the west, but rather 

is used by animals dispersing from the core habitat and colonising the site following the 

creation of suitable habitat between 2009 and 2016. Low numbers of individuals were found 

to occur on the soil storage mounds in the south west section of the Application Site. It is 

concluded that in the absence of mitigation, the predicted impacts of the development 

would be the killing and / or injuring of slow worms and common lizards during the 

development phase, which would be an offence under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981. 

Page 58



A detailed mitigation strategy is proposed that seeks to ensure that all reptiles are removed 

from the development footprint prior to any works commencing and are excluded from the 

works area during the development phase. It is concluded that provided that the mitigation 

strategy is strictly adhered to, the risk of killing / injuring common reptiles will be minimised 

and the loss of a small area of ‘good’ quality reptile habitat on site will not have a significant, 

negative impact on the meta-population occupying suitable habitat in the wider area. A 

planning condition is proposed to secure completion of the development in accordance with 

the mitigation strategy details. 

 

Access and Highways 

The Site is located within the 1km and 2km walking catchments and the 5km cycling 

catchment of a wider range of local services and amenities including recreation, retail, 

education and employment opportunities. The Site is located within the proximity of a 

regular bus service. 

Access to the development is principally proposed from a newly created priority junction 
from High Road and frontage accesses also onto High Road.  
 
Off highway parking spaces are proposed to each dwelling with additional visitor spaces 
proposed. 

In respect of the proposed highway design and the impacts of the development on the local 

highway network, Cumbria County Council – Highways have been consulted. Objections 

were initial raised to technical elements of the proposed layout; however, these have been 

resolved through revision and it has now been confirmed that there are no objections to the 

development subject to the imposition of defined planning conditions, which include 

detailed specification of the highway design, provision of ramps to junctions, provision of 

access pre-occupation; limitations on addition accesses; and, the submission, approval and 

adherence to a Construction Traffic Management Plan. 

The proposed level of parking accords with the requirements of the Cumbria Development 

Design Guide. 

 

Flood Risk and Drainage  

Policy DM11 requires that surface water is managed appropriately, with the inclusion of 

Sustainable Drainage Systems where possible. 

Policy DM24 states that development will not be permitted where: there is an unacceptable 

risk of flooding; or, the development would increase the risk of flooding elsewhere; or, the 

development would cause interference with or loss of access to a watercourse. 

A Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy has been submitted in support of the 

planning application. 

Page 59



The Site is located within Flood Zone 1. The proposed comprises a more vulnerable use and 

is therefore a compatible use in Flood Zone 1. 

It is proposed to dispose of foul water to the public main in accordance with the drainage 

hierarchy. 

In respect of the disposal of surface water, the Application Site is unsuitable for infiltration 

drainage due to shallow groundwater ingress. It is proposed that surface water be disposed 

to the existing surface water drainage system serving the adjacent Waters Edge 

development. The surface water is to be discharged at a restricted rate of 6l/s via a scheme 

of onsite attenuation comprising oversized pipework and a geocellular attenuation tank. 

In order to accommodate the additional flows from this development, the existing surface 

water drainage system serving the adjacent Waters Edge development will require the 

addition of a geocellular attenuation tank. These works fall outside of the Application Site 

and require a separate application for Full Planning Permission in their own right, which will 

need to be considered on its individual merits. Provisions are proposed in the required 

Section 106 Planning Obligation to secure completion of the the required improvements to 

the drainage system serving the adjacent Waters Edge development prior to the proposed 

development being commenced or brought in to use as necessary to ensure that the 

proposed development as completed is acceptable from a technical drainage perspective 

and does not increase flood risk etc... 

The surface water drainage scheme as proposed accords with the drainage hierarchy. 

In respect of the proposed drainage design, Cumbria County Council – LLFA have been 

consulted. Objections were initial raised to technical elements of the proposed scheme; 

however, these have been resolved through revision and it has now been confirmed that 

there are no objections to the development subject to the imposition of defined planning 

conditions, which include provisions to secure completion, maintenance and management 

in accordance with the proposed details; and, the submission, approval and adherence to a 

Construction Surface Water Management Plan. 

 

Residential Amenity  

The interface separation distances achieved between the existing dwellings and proposed 

dwelling accord with the provisions of Policy DM12. 

Given the scale, form and design of the proposed dwelling, unacceptable adverse impacts 

upon the existing dwellings will not result through overbearing, loss of light, overlooking or 

overshadowing. 

A planning condition is proposed to control hours of construction and to secure to 

Construction Environmental Management Plan securing details of construction working 

practices to minimise impacts upon existing dwellings through noise and dust generation 

and parking/loading etc.. 

Page 60



Ground Conditions  

The Application Site is contaminated land which has been designated as a special site under 
the Environmental protection Act 1990 part 2A The land formerly owned by Rhodia and 
operated by Huntsman has been the subject of remediation under a Remediation 
Statement. The Application Site has not been remediated. 
 
The previous use of the former Marchon chemical works presents a medium risk of 
contamination that could be mobilised during construction to pollute controlled waters. 
Controlled waters are particularly sensitive in this location because the proposed 
development site is located upon a Secondary Aquifer A and in close proximity to the Irish 
Sea. 
 
The Environment Agency and Copeland Environmental Health have been consulted. 
 
It has been confirmed that the Phase 1 and 2 Geoenvironmental Investigation submitted 
demonstrates that it will be possible to manage the risks posed to controlled waters by this 
development; however, further detailed information will however be required before built 
development is undertaken.  
 
A planning condition is proposed to secure submission, approval, implementation and 

validation of a remediation strategy and piling risk assessment for the Application Site to 

ensure that the land is safe and suitable for development before development is 

commenced. 

 

Education 

Cumbria County Council has informally confirmed that there is sufficient capacity within 

existing schools within walking distance of the Application Site to accommodate the 

estimated primary and secondary yield from the proposed development; therefore, no 

financial contribution is required. 

At the time of writing formal confirmation of this position remains awaited. 

 

The Planning Balance 

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF requires the application of the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development to proposals relating to the provision of housing where there are 

no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which are most important for 

determining the application are out-of-date. Out of date includes where the local planning 

authority cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing sites; or where the 

Housing Delivery Test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially below the 

housing requirement over the previous three years. 

In November 2020, Copeland Borough Council produced a Five Year Housing Land Supply 

Statement which demonstrates a 6.35 year supply of deliverable housing sites against the 

Page 61



emerging housing requirement and a 55 year supply against the Government’s standard 

methodology figure. Copeland Borough Council has also met the most recent Housing 

Delivery Test. 

Notwithstanding the above, the policies in the CS must be considered out of date. 

The ECLP will, once adopted, replace the CS and saved polices of the LP. The ECLP has been 

drafted based upon an evidence base of documents which includes the Strategic Housing 

Market Assessment 2019 (SHMA). The SHMA calculates the housing need in Copeland over 

the plan period of 2017-2035 of 140 dwellings per annum. The ECLP confirms that to meet 

the housing need identified in the SHMA, development will be required beyond the existing 

development boundaries identified in Policy ST2. 

In the context of the above, Paragraph 11 of the NPPF is engaged and the policies of the 

Development Plan which are most important for determining the application are to be 

considered out of date and it required that planning permission be granted unless:  

i. the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of particular 
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.  

 
In applying the provisions of Paragraph 11, the Application Site would assist in significantly 

boosting housing supply to meet the identified need for housing within Whitehaven and the 

wider Borough as detailed in Policy ST2 and the ECLP as required by the NPPF. 

The proposed development comprising the erection of 40no. dwellings is appropriate in size 

and character to the Principal Town of Whitehaven in accordance with the spatial objectives 

of Policy ST2 and ECLP; 

The Application Site is located in close and convenient proximity to the wide range of 

services and employment opportunities located within Whitehaven for which the 

settlement has been designated the Principal Town in Policy ST2 . Many services are located 

within walking distance of the Application Site; and, 

Sustainable travel options exist within the vicinity as required by Policy DM22. 

A total of four affordable ownership homes are proposed comprising two 2no. bedroom 

houses and 2no. two bedroom bungalows. This equates to the delivery of 10% of the 

development as is required by Policy H8PO of the ELP and the NPPF. 

The development does not raise issues in respect of highway safety, residential amenity, 

ecology, land contamination, flood risk and drainage subject to the planning conditions and 

Section 106 Planning Obligation proposed. 

The development will result in some minor adverse local landscape and visual impacts. 

In overall terms, the adverse local landscape and visual impacts of the development are not 

sufficiently harmful to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the significant benefits of 

the development; therefore, the application is recommended for the approval. 

Page 62



 

Recommendation:- 

Members authorise delegated authority to the Head of Planning and Place to approve 

planning permission for the development subject to: 

- the Applicant entering into a Section 106 Planning Obligation securing: the delivery 
of the required 4no. affordable dwellings; maintenance and management of the 
proposed public open space; the required improvements to the drainage system 
serving the adjacent Waters Edge development prior to the proposed development 
being commenced or brought in to use as necessary; and, any required education 
contribution. 

- the planning conditions outlined at the end of this report;  
- the receipt of revised technical documentation and drawings relating to the 

proposed house types, highway design, drainage and landscape reflecting the 
proposed minor revisions to the layout; and, 

- any amendments to the proposed development and revisions to the proposed 
planning conditions as deemed acceptable by the Head of Planning and Place. 

 

Conditions   

1. The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years from the 
date of this decision. 
 
Reason: 

 
To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 

2.  Permission shall relate to the following plans and documents as received on the 
respective dates and development shall be carried out in accordance with them: - 

 
Planning Application Form 
Location Plan – Drawing No. 1839 007 Rev. A 
Site Layout – Drawing No. 1839 001 Rev. C 
Plot Type Layout – Drawing No. 1839 006 Rev. C 
Parking Layout – Drawing No. 1839 003 Rev. C 
Hard Surfaces Layout – Drawing No. 1839 004 Rev. C 
Boundary Treatments Layout – Drawing No. 1839 002 Rev. C 
Affordable Housing Plan – Drawing No. 1839 008 Rev. C 
Bin Location Layout – Drawing No. 1839 009 Rev. B 
Landscape Plan – Drawing No. G010 001 Rev B **requires update** 
Proposed Housing Waters Edge, Whitehaven Landscape Maintenance & 
Management Plan Gleeson Homes Ltd 28.11.20 **requires update** 
Boundary Treatments – Drawing No. 1839 006 
House Type Drawing Type 201 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/201-8 Rev. A 

Page 63



House Type Drawing Type 201 Floor Plans - Drawing No. 201-1F 
House Type Drawing Type 254 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/254-9 
House Type Drawing Type 254 Floor Plans - Drawing No. 254-1 
House Type Drawing Type 301 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/301-8 Rev. E 
House Type Drawing Type 301 Floor Plans - Drawing No. 301/1G 
House Type Drawing Type 304 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/304-10 Rev. G 
**requires update** 
House Type Drawing Type 304 Floor Plans - Drawing No. 304/1E **requires update** 
House Type Drawing Type 309 Plot 24 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/309-10 
Rev. D 
House Type Drawing Type 309 Floor Plans - Drawing No. Issue 309X 
House Type Drawing Type 341 Plot 9 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/341-10 
Rev. A House Type Drawing Type 341 Floor Plans - Drawing No. Issue 341 
House Type Drawing Type 360 **requires update** 
House Type Drawing Type 360 Floor Plans - Drawing No. 360/1B**requires update** 
House Type Drawing Type 435 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/345-9 Rev. A  
House Type Drawing Type 435 Floor Plans - Drawing No. Issue 435/1A 
House Type Drawing Type 436 Elevations (Rural 13) - Drawing No. 13/436-10 Rev. A  
House Type Drawing Type 436 Floor Plans - Drawing No. Issue 436/1 
Detached Garage Plans/Elevations **requires update** 
Private Drive Levels and Drainage – Drawing No. TC/T19360/A1/210 Rev. E 
**requires update** 
Kerbing Proposals – Drawing No. TC / T19360 / A1 / 203 Rev. F **requires update** 
Highways Proposals – Drawing No. TC / T19360 / A1 / 201 Rev. F **requires 
update** 
Proposed Highway Materials – Drawing No. TC / T19360 / A1 / 204 Rev. G **requires 
update** 
Section 38 Adoption Areas – Drawing No. TC / T19360 / A1 / 202 Rev. E **requires 
update** 
Highways Layout Plan – Drawing No. TC / T19360 / A1 / 101 Rev. B **requires 
update** 
Section 278 Proposals – Drawing No. TC/T19360/A1/205 Rev. D 
Drainage Layout Plan – Drawing No. TC / T19360 / A1 / 100 Rev. F **requires 
update** 
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy – Report Ref. TC/T19360/2021/05 
Version 05 23rd November 2021 **requires update** 
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal - Land at Water’s Edge, High Road, Whitehaven - 
Proposed Housing Development 
Reptile Survey Land at Water’s Edge, High Road, Kells, Whitehaven, Cumbria, CA28 
9PE 2021 – Job No. SRE20REP006 Doc No. 1 
Phase 1 and 2 Geoenvironmental Investigation for Residential Development on Land 
at Water’s Edge, Whitehaven - Report Ref. 8190OR03 Rev01 

 
Reason 

 
To conform with the requirement of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990, as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Page 64



 

Pre-Commencement  
 
Ground Conditions 
 
3.  No development shall commence until a remediation strategy to deal with the risks 

associated with contamination of the site in respect of the development hereby 
permitted, has been submitted to and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority.  

 
This strategy will include the following components: 

 
1. A supplementary site investigation to provide information for a detailed 

assessment of the risk to all Controlled Water receptors that may be affected, 
including those off-site. 

2. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred to 
in (1) and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving 
full details of the remediation measures required and how they are to be 
undertaken. 

3. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (2) are 
complete and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of 
pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency action. 

 
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 
  
Reason 
 
To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at 
unacceptable risk from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water 
pollution in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 170 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policy ST1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 

 

4.  No development shall commence until a risk assessment for piling and foundation 
designs using penetrative methods has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The development shall be completed in accordance 
with the approved details. 
  
Reason 
 
To ensure that the proposed foundation design and installation does not harm 
groundwater resources in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 170 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy ST1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-
2028. 

 

Page 65



Highways 
  
5. No development shall commencement until further details, including 

longitudinal/cross sections of the carriageway, footways, footpaths etc. have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by, the local planning authority.  
 
The carriageway, footways, footpaths etc. shall be designed, constructed, drained 
and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and accord with the standards laid down 
in the Cumbria Development Design Guide or any such replacement documentation. 
 
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details before 
the development is complete. 

 
Reason 

 
To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety in 
accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 

 

6.  No development shall commencement until a Construction Traffic Management Plan 
(CTMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  
 
The CTMP shall include details of: 
• pre-construction road condition established by a detailed survey for 
accommodation works within the highways boundary conducted with a Highway 
Authority representative; with all post repairs carried out to the satisfaction of the 
Local Highway Authority at the applicants expense; 
• details of proposed crossings of the highway verge;  
• retained areas for vehicle parking, manoeuvring, loading and unloading for their 
specific purpose during the development; 
• cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway; 
• details of proposed wheel washing facilities; 
• the sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent spillage or deposit 
of any materials on the highway; 
• construction vehicle routing; 
• the management of junctions to and crossings of the public highway and other 
public rights of way/footway; 
• Details of any proposed temporary access points (vehicular / pedestrian); 
• surface water management details during the construction phase; and, 
• specific measures to manage and limit the impact on the school, including working 
hours including any special measures to accommodate pedestrians deliveries and 
movement of equipment on the road network surrounding the site must not take 
place during school muster times in the interests of road safety. 

 
The approved CTMP shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.  

 
Reason 

Page 66



 
 To ensure the undertaking of the development does not adversely impact upon the 
 fabric or operation of the local highway network and in the interests of highway and 
 pedestrian safety in accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland 
 
Drainage 
 
7.  No development shall commencement until details of all measures to be taken by 

the applicant/developer to prevent surface water discharging onto or off the 
highway have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  
Any approved works shall be implemented prior to the development being brought 
into use and shall be retained for the lifetime of the development. 

 
Reason 

 
To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety in 
accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 
To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8 

 
8.  No development shall commence until a Construction Surface Water Management 

plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
 

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 
  
Reason 

 
To safeguard against flooding to surrounding sites and to safeguard against pollution 
of surrounding watercourses and drainage systems in accordance with the provisions 
of Policy ENV1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 

 

9. No development shall commence until a Construction Environmental Management 
(CEMP) Plan has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The CEMP shall provide for:- 

˗ The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
˗ Loading and unloading of plant and materials; 
˗ Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development; 
˗ The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 

and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate; 
˗ Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;  
˗ A scheme for recycling / disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction works; 
˗ Measures to control noise, dust and vibration; and, 
˗ Measures or diversions to permit access during the construction. 

 
The approved CEMP shall be adhered to throughout the construction period.  

 

Page 67



Reason         
 

These details are required to be approved before the commencement of development 
to safeguard the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, prevent highway impacts and 
ecological impacts in accordance with the provisions of Policy ST1, ENV3 and T1 of the 
Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 

 

Pre-superstructure/Pre-occupation 
 
Highways 
 
10. No dwellings shall be occupied until the estate road including footways and 

cycleways to serve that dwelling has been constructed in all respects to base course 
level and street lighting where it is to form part of the estate road has been provided 
and brought into full operational use. 

 
Reason 

 
To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety in 
accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 

 

Materials 
 
11.       No superstructure shall be erected until samples and details of the materials to be 

used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby 
approved including details of the proposed driveway finishes have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. 
  
Reason: 

 
To ensure the development is of a high quality design in accordance with Policy 
DM10 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013 - 2028. 

 

12.  No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied unless or until a scheme detailing the 
layout and design of the childrens play space measuring 100 sqm has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved 
scheme shall be completed prior to the completion of the development and shall be 
retained for the lifetime of the development. 

 
Reason  

 
To ensure sufficient open space and children’s play space is proposed within the site 
for use by future residents in accordance with the requirements of Policy SS5 and 
Policy DM12 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 

Page 68



 

Other 
 
Ground Conditions  
 
13. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing within 
14 days to the Local Planning Authority and once the Local Planning Authority has 
identified the part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination, 
development must be halted on that part of the site.  

 
An assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary a 
remediation scheme, together with a timetable for its implementation, must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
The measures in the approved remediation scheme must then be implemented in 
accordance with the approved timetable.  Following completion of measures 
identified in the approved remediation scheme a validation report must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason 
 
To prevent harm to human health and the environment in accordance with the 
provisions of Policy ST1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 

 

Highways 
 
14. Ramps shall be provided on each side of every junction to enable wheelchairs, 

pushchairs etc. to be safely manoeuvred at kerb lines. Details of all such ramps shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval before development 
commences. Any details so approved shall be constructed as part of the 
development. 

 
Reason 

 
To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety in 
accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 

 

15.  There shall be no vehicular access to or egress from the site other than via the 
approved access, unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 

 
To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety in 
accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 

Page 69



 
16. Access gates, if provided, shall be hung to open inwards only away from the 

highway. 
 

Reason 
 

To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety in 
accordance with the provisions of Policy T1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2021. 

 

Ecology 
 
17. The development here by approved shall not proceed except in accordance with the 

recommendations described in Reptile Survey Land at Water’s Edge, High Road, 
Kells, Whitehaven, Cumbria, CA28 9PE 2021 – Job No. SRE20REP006 Doc No. 1. 

 
 

Reason 
 

For the avoidance of doubt and to prevent harm to biodiversity in accordance with 
the provisions of Policy ENV3 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 

 

Working Hours 
 
18. No work for the construction of these developments, including demolition, shall take 

place on the site, except between the hours: 
08.00 - 18.00 Monday to Friday; and  
08.00 - 13.00 on Saturdays. 
No work should be carried out on Sundays or officially recognised public holidays. 
 
Reason  
 
To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with the 
provisions of Policy ST1 of the Copeland Local Plan 2013-2028. 

 
Landscaping 
 
19. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details.  The works shall be carried out in the first planting season 
following the completion of the development or in accordance with a programme 
first submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority.  Any trees / 
shrubs which are removed, die, become severely damaged or diseased within five 
years of their planting shall be replaced in the next planting season with trees / 
shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted. 
 
Reason: 

 

Page 70



To safeguard and enhance the character of the area and secure high quality 
landscaping in accordance with the provisions of Policy DM26 of the Copeland Local 
Plan 2013-2028. 

 

20. The development here by approved shall not proceed except in accordance with the 
recommendations described in Proposed Housing Waters Edge, Whitehaven 
Landscape Maintenance & Management Plan Gleeson Homes Ltd 28.11.20 
**requires update** 

 
Reason 

 
To safeguard and enhance the character of the area and secure high quality 
landscaping in accordance with the provisions of Policy DM26 of the Copeland Local 
Plan 2013-2028. 

 
 

Statement  

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this 

application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, including planning 

policies and any representations that may have been received, and subsequently 

determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Planning Panel 190122 

             
DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 
Lead Officer:  Nick Hayhurst – Planning and Place Manager 
 
 

To inform Members of the Delegated Decisions made in the period  
6 December 2021 to 7 January 2022.    

 
 
Recommendation: That the List of Delegated Decisions be noted.  
 
Resource Implications: Nil 
 

1. The Planning and Place Manager has delegated authority to determine 
Planning Applications as stated in Chapter 10 of the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 

2. It is a requirement that the Planning and Place Manager report details of 
all applications determined under delegated powers to the Planning 
Panel. 
 

3. Attached is a list of Delegated Decisions made in the period  
6 December 2021 to 7 January 2022. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Contact Officer:  Nick Hayhurst – Planning and Place Manager 
 
Appendix: List of Delegated Decisions 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 5



Application Num  4/21/2034/0E1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs P & E Fleming, The Caravan, Tutehill Farm, Pica, 

CA14 4QF, 

Location  TUTEHILL FARM, PICA 

Proposal  LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT CERTIFICATE FOR EXISTING 

RESIDENTIAL USE OF A CARAVAN 

Decision Approval of Certificate of Lawfulness 

Decision Date 22 December 2021 

Parish Arlecdon and Frizington 

  

Application Num  4/21/2101/0F1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs Paton, c/o Green Swallow North Limited, Swallow 

Barn, Blindcrake, CA13 0QP, 

Location PLOT 4, WEST END, RHEDA PARK, FRIZINGTON 

Proposal ERECTION OF DWELLING (AMENDMENT TO PREVIOUSLY 

APPROVED DWELLING) 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 8 December 2021 

Parish Arlecdon and Frizington 

  

Application Num  4/21/2298/0F1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs Mark Jackson, 5 West End, Rheda Park, Frizington, 

CA26 3AB, 

Location 5 WEST END, RHEDA PARK, FRIZINGTON 

Proposal ERECTION OF SINGLE DWELLING AND DETACHED GARAGE 

WITH NEW SITE ENTRANCE LOCATION TO REPLACE EXTANT 

PERMISSION FOR NEW HOUSE 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 7 December 2021 

Parish Arlecdon and Frizington 

  

Application Num  4/21/2345/DOC 

Applicant Michael Jordan, Croft Cottage, Redmain, Cockermouth, CA13 

0PZ, 

Location LAND AT ST MICHAELS CHAPEL, MORESBY PARKS ROAD, 

MORESBY PARKS, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal  DISCHARGE OF CONDITIONS 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 

AND 13 OF PLANNING APPLICATION 4/18/2044/0F1 

Decision Approve 

Decision Date 7 December 2021 

Parish Moresby 

  

 

Page 74



Application Num  4/21/2354/DOC 

Applicant Seascale Golf Club, The Banks, Seascale, CA20 1QL, FAO Mr 

Adam Lamb, 

Location SEASCALE GOLF CLUB, THE BANKS, SEASCALE 

Proposal DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 3, 4, 5, 6 AND 7 OF PLANNING 

APPROVAL 4/18/2194/0F1 

Decision Withdrawn 

Decision Date 10 December 2021 

Parish Seascale 

  

Application Num  4/21/2442/0F1 

Applicant The BV Group UK Ltd, 91 Wellington Street, Luton, LU1 5AF, 

FAO: H Mishra, 

Location 22-23 MARKET PLACE, EGREMONT 

Proposal ERECTION OF BUILDING FOR USE AS A 5 BEDROOMED 

HOUSE IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION UTILISING THE 

STRUCTURE THAT HAS BEEN PART ERECTED ON THE SITE 

WITH EXTERNAL RAILINGS & GATE TO THE FRONT 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 10 December 2021 

Parish Egremont 

  

Application Num  4/21/2382/0F1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs Allick, 18 East Road, Egremont, CA22 2ED, 

Location LAND ADJACENT TO THORNLEA, CARLETON, EGREMONT 

Proposal ERECTION OF A SINGLE DWELLING  

Decision Withdrawn 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Haile 

  

Application Num  4/21/2397/0F1 

Applicant Ean Parker, 5 Gameriggs Road, Whitehaven, CA28 9RA, 

Location 5 GAMERIGGS ROAD, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal PROPOSED RELOCATION OF GARAGE AND SINGLE STOREY 

SIDE EXTENSION TO HOUSE 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 16 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Application Num  4/21/2415/0H1 

Applicant Sellafield Limited, Albion Square 1, Albion Street, 

Whitehaven, CA28 7NE, 

Location SELLAFIELD SITE, SEASCALE 

Proposal APPLICATION FOR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES CONSENT FOR 

THE INSTALLATION OF 10 DIESEL STORAGE TANKS IN TWO 

SITE LOCATIONS 

Decision Approve Hazardous Substances 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Beckermet with Thornhill 

  

Application Num  4/21/2415/0H1 

Applicant Sellafield Limited, Albion Square 1, Albion Street, 

Whitehaven, CA28 7NE, 

Location SELLAFIELD SITE, SEASCALE 

Proposal APPLICATION FOR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES CONSENT FOR 

THE INSTALLATION OF 10 DIESEL STORAGE TANKS IN TWO 

SITE LOCATIONS 

Decision Approve Hazardous Substances 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Ponsonby 

  

Application Num  4/21/2415/0H1 

Applicant Sellafield Limited, Albion Square 1, Albion Street, 

Whitehaven, CA28 7NE, 

Location SELLAFIELD SITE, SEASCALE 

Proposal APPLICATION FOR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES CONSENT FOR 

THE INSTALLATION OF 10 DIESEL STORAGE TANKS IN TWO 

SITE LOCATIONS 

Decision Approve Hazardous Substances 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Seascale 

  

Application Num  4/21/2434/0F1 

Applicant Mr Colin Benn, c/o Day Cummins Ltd, 

Location GROVE COURT HOTEL, CLEATOR 

Proposal CONVERSION OF A FORMER ANNEX TO HOTEL TO FORM A 

FOUR BEDROOMED DWELLING WITH EXTENSION AND 

ALTERATIONS AND ASSOCIATED EXTERNAL WORKS 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Cleator Moor 

Page 76



  

Application Num  4/21/2456/0G1 

Applicant Mr Colin Benn, c/o Day Cummins Ltd, 

Location BUNGALOWS 1 & 2, GROVE COURT HOTEL, CLEATOR 

Proposal REMOVAL OF OCCUPANCY CONDITION RELATING TO STAFF 

ACCOMMODATION APPROVED UNDER PLANNING REFERENCE 

4/88/0026/2 

Decision Approve removal of condition 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Cleator Moor 

  

Application Num  4/21/2457/0G1 

Applicant Mr Colin Benn, c/o Day Cummins Ltd, 

Location GROVE COURT HOTEL, CLEATOR 

Proposal REMOVAL OF OCCUPANCY CONDITION RELATING TO STAFF 

ACCOMMODATION APPROVED UNDER PLANNING REFERENCE 

4/89/0247/0 

Decision Approve removal of condition 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Cleator Moor 

  

Application Num  4/21/2473/0F1 

Applicant R Falconer & Son, Water Blean Farm, The Hill, Millom, LA18 

5HA, FAO Mr James Falconer, 

Location WATER BLEAN FARM, THE HILL, MILLOM 

Proposal ERECT ROOF OVER MIDDEN STORE 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Millom Without 

  

Application Num  4/21/2450/0F1 

Applicant Mr Martin Park, 31 Wasdale Road, Millom , LA18 4JJ, 

Location 31 WASDALE ROAD, MILLOM 

Proposal ERECTION OF A 'GRANNY FLAT' EXTENSION TO NORTH 

ELEVATION 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 7 December 2021 

Parish Millom 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



Application Num  4/21/2435/0F1 

Applicant Mr J Cook, 5 Herbert Hill, Wellington Row, Whitehaven, CA28 

7HD, 

Location 5 HERBERT HILL, WELLINGTON ROW, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal DEMOLISH EXISTING OUTHOUSE AND CONSTRUCT NEW 

EXTENSION TO REAR OF THE PROPERTY 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 10 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2468/0F1 

Applicant Mr James Stalker, 4 The Green, Lamplugh, CA14 4TY, 

Location 4 THE GREEN, LAMPLUGH 

Proposal SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND REMOVAL OF 

CONSERVATORY 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Lamplugh 

  

Application Num  4/21/2461/0F1 

Applicant Mr Steven Cass, 18 Grant Drive, Whitehaven, Cumbria, 

Location 18 GRANT DRIVE, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal DETACHED SINGLE GARAGE 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 15 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2444/0F1 

Applicant J A & B Stamper, Bonny Farm, Moresby Parks, Whitehaven, 

CA28 8UT, 

Location BONNY FARM, MORESBY PARKS 

Proposal ROOFING OVER MIDDEN 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 8 December 2021 

Parish Moresby 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



Application Num  4/21/2458/0O1 

Applicant B Atkinson, Weston, Beckermet, CA22 2NX, 

Location WESTON, BECKERMET 

Proposal OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION (WITH ALL MATTERS 

RESERVED) FOR REDEVELOPMENT OF BUILDERS YARD TO 

RESIDENTIAL - AMENDED SCHEME FOR PREVIOUS 

APPLICATION 4/20/2461/0O1 

Decision Refuse 

Decision Date 16 December 2021 

Parish Haile 

  

Application Num  4/21/2449/0F1 

Applicant Kathleen Torrance, 2 Basket Road, Whitehaven, Cumbria, 

CA28 9AJ, 

Location 2 BASKET ROAD, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION (AMENDMENT TO 

PREVIOUSLY APPROVED 4/21/2319/0F1) 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 6 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2452/DOC 

Applicant Whitehaven Harbour Commissioners, 27 Lowther Street, 

Whitehaven, CA28 7DN, FAO Mr John Baker, 

Location WELLINGTON CAR PARK, WEST STRAND, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 7 OF PLANNING APPROVAL 

4/21/2163/0B1 

Decision Approve 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2470/0O1 

Applicant Mr Keith Hartley, 117 Devonshire Road, Millom, Cumbria, 

LA18 4JP, 

Location LAND TO REAR OF HOLBORN HILL, MILLOM 

Proposal OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF ONE 

DWELLING WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED  

Decision Approve in Outline 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Millom 

 

 

 

Page 79



Application Num  4/21/2453/0F1 

Applicant Mrs Lynne Dobson, Hill View, Wellington, Gosforth, CA20 

1BH, 

Location GARAGE COMPOUND OFF LINGMELL CRESCENT, SEASCALE 

Proposal ERECT DETACHED DOUBLE GARAGE (PRIVATE USE) 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 9 December 2021 

Parish Seascale 

  

Application Num  4/21/2460/0F1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs D Chan, Grace Villa, Distington To Parton, 

Distington, CA14 4PX, 

Location GRACE VILLA, DISTINGTON, WORKINGTON 

Proposal SINGLE STOREY EXTENSIONS TO FORM LARGER 

KITCHEN/FAMILY ROOM & SUNROOM 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Distington 

  

Application Num  4/21/2455/0F1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs Parr, 27 Broom Bank, Whitehaven, CA28 6SB, 

Location 27 BROOM BANK, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal PROPOSED SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION AND BALCONY  TO 

THE REAR 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 10 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2462/0F1 

Applicant David Howard, 3 Wilton Mews, Wilton, Egremont, CA22 2PJ, 

Location LAND TO REAR OF 1, 2 & 3 WILTON MEWS, WILTON, 

EGREMONT 

Proposal CHANGE OF USE FROM AGRICULTURAL LAND TO GARDENS 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Haile 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



Application Num  4/21/2479/0F1 

Applicant The Stork Hotel Ltd, Rowrah Road, Cumbria, CA26 3XJ, 

Location STORK HOTEL, ROWRAH ROAD 

Proposal CHANGE OF USE FROM HOTEL/RESIDENTIAL TO 

RESIDENTIAL ONLY 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 21 December 2021 

Parish Arlecdon and Frizington 

  

Application Num  4/21/2478/0F1 

Applicant Mr Leon Crellin, 3 Central Avenue, Egremont, CA22 2BL, 

Location 3 CENTRAL AVENUE, EGREMONT 

Proposal SUMMER HOUSE WITH COVERED HOT TUB AREA 

(RETROSPECTIVE) 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Egremont 

  

Application Num  4/21/2467/0F1 

Applicant Miss Amber Sullivan, 157 Bowthorn Road, Cleator Moor, 

Cumbria, CA25 5JG, 

Location 157 BOWTHORN ROAD, CLEATOR MOOR 

Proposal REAR AND SIDE SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION TO PROVIDE 

ADDITIONAL KITCHEN SPACE, A SHOWER ROOM AND A 

UTILITY BAR/LOBBY 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Cleator Moor 

  

Application Num  4/21/2471/0B1 

Applicant High Grange Developments Ltd, P.O Box 77, WHITEHAVEN, 

CA28 6WA, FAO Mr Gary Reed, 

Location LAND AT MILL HILL, CLEATOR MOOR 

Proposal PROPOSED SUBSTITUTION OF HOUSE TYPES ON PLOTS 

37,38 AND 39; AND, REMOVAL OF GARAGES AND 

INTRODUCTION OF INDIVIDUAL DRIVEWAYS TO PLOTS 40 

AND 41 COMPRISING A VARIATION OF PLANNING 

CONDITION 1 OF PLANNING APPROVAL 4/21/2334/0B1 

(AMENDMENT OF CONDITION 5 (MODIFICATION OF ACCESS 

JUNCTION) OF PLANNING APPROVAL 4/16/2409/0O1 - 

OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF 

65 DWELLINGS INCLUDING FULL DETAILS OF ACCESS WITH 

ALL OTHER MATTERS RESERVED) 

Page 81



Decision Approve 

Decision Date 13 December 2021 

Parish Cleator Moor 

  

Application Num  4/21/2472/0F1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs Meagan, 2 Standings Rise, Whitehaven, CA28 6SX, 

Location 2 STANDINGS RISE, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal REAR EXTENSION TO CREATE LARGER KITCHEN DINER 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2475/0L1 

Applicant Anthony Wilson, 2 Oakbank, Whitehaven, CA28 6HY, 

Location 2 OAKBANK, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal LISTED BUILDING CONSENT FOR SLATE VENT IN THE ROOF 

OF THE REAR OFFSHOOT FOR IMPROVED VENTILATION OF 

MAIN BATHROOM 

Decision Approve Listed Building Consent (start within 3yr) 

Decision Date 6 January 2022 

Parish Whitehaven 

  

Application Num  4/21/2481/TPO 

Applicant Home Group Ltd, Anthorne House, Irish Street, Maryport, 

CA15 8AD, FAO Ruth Walsh, 

Location LAND OPPOSITE 6 OAKLANDS, BECKERMET, EGREMONT 

Proposal FELL AND GRIND TREE STUMP OF A TREE PROTECTED BY A 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

Decision TREE PRESERVATION APPROVE 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Beckermet with Thornhill 

  

Application Num  4/21/2481/TPO 

Applicant Home Group Ltd, Anthorne House, Irish Street, Maryport, 

CA15 8AD, FAO Ruth Walsh, 

Location LAND OPPOSITE 6 OAKLANDS, BECKERMET, EGREMONT 

Proposal FELL AND GRIND TREE STUMP OF A TREE PROTECTED BY A 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

Decision TREE PRESERVATION APPROVE 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Haile 

Page 82



  

Application Num  4/21/2483/DOC 

Applicant Slacks Millom Ltd, Borwick Rails, Millom, LA18 4JU, FAO: Mr A 

Slack, 

Location SLACKS MILLOM LTD, BORWICK RAILS, MILLOM 

Proposal  DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 12 OF PLANNING APPLICATION 

4/20/2295/0R1 

Decision Approve 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Millom 

  

Application Num  4/21/2493/0F1 

Applicant Mr Leonard Newall, Whinney Hill House, Whinny Hill, Cleator 

Moor,, CA25 5QR, 

Location WHINNEY HILL HOUSE, WHINNEY HILL, CLEATOR MOOR 

Proposal SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 6 January 2022 

Parish Cleator Moor 

  

Application Num  4/21/2498/0F1 

Applicant Mr Rimmer, Summergrove Hall, Hensingham, Whitehaven, 

CA28 8XZ, 

Location SUMMERGROVE HALL, HENSINGHAM, WHITEHAVEN 

Proposal ERECTION OF EXTENSION TO HOUSE LIFT 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 6 January 2022 

Parish Weddicar 

  

Application Num  4/21/2500/0F1 

Applicant Robert Stabler, 15 Queens Crescent, Frizington, CA26 3SG, 

Location 15 QUEENS CRESCENT, FRIZINGTON 

Proposal ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSIONS FOR GROUND FLOOR 

ACCESSIBLE BEDROOM AND SHOWER ROOM, PLUS 

INTERNAL ALTERATIONS 

Decision Approve (commence within 3 years) 

Decision Date 6 January 2022 

Parish Arlecdon and Frizington 

 

 

 

 

Page 83



Application Num  4/21/2537/0N1 

Applicant Mr & Mrs A Fleming, 6 Dalzell Street, Moor Row, Cumbria, 

CA24 3JP, 

Location LAND TO THE EAST OF MOOR ROW 

Proposal APPLICATION OF DETERMINE IF PRIOR APPROVAL IS 

REQUIRED FOR ERECTION OF AN AGRICULTURAL SHED 

Decision Approve Notice of Intention 

Decision Date 20 December 2021 

Parish Cleator Moor 

  

Application Num  4/21/2539/DOC 

Applicant C G P Ltd, Mainsgate Road, MILLOM, Cumbria   LA18 4JZ, 

FAO Mr Jonathan Blackhurst, 

Location C G P LTD, MAINSGATE ROAD, MILLOM 

Proposal DISCHARGE OF CONDITION 9 OF PLANNING APPROVAL 

4/21/2121/0F1 

Decision Approve 

Decision Date 21 December 2021 

Parish Millom 

  
 

 
 

Page 84



PP 19 01 22 

               

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
 
Lead Officer:  Nick Hayhurst – Head of Planning and Place  
 

To inform Members of Development Management Performance for the third quarter of 
2021/22 (01st October – 31st December 2021) against National Performance Indicators    

 
Recommendation: That the report be noted  
 
Resource Implications: Nil 
 
1.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Speed of Determination of Planning Applications – the following results were achieved:- 
 

 2nd 
Quarter 
(July – Sept 
2021) 

Cumulative 
(April  2021 
– Sept 2021) 

National 

Average 

(England) 

Position in 

National 

Tables 

(up to end 

of 

September 

2021) 

PI 157 (a) 
Major planning applications 
dealt within 13 weeks or agreed 
extension of time 
Target is 65% 

 
100% 
(6 out of 6) 

 
100% 
(12 out of 
12) 

 
85% 

 
Joint 1st out 
of 345 

PI 157 (b) and P157 (c) 
Minor and Other planning 
applications dealt within 8 
weeks or agreed extension of 
time 
Target is 80% 

 
99% 
(84 out of 
85) 

 
99% 
(232 out of 
234) 

 
82% 

 
31st out of 
345 

 
   Other Indicators for 2nd Quarter (July – September 2021) 

     
 Percentage of Applications determined under delegated powers = 92% 

 
  Percentage of planning applications approved = 93% 
 

 Percentage of Planning Appeals Allowed = 0 (2 out of 2 appeals dismissed this quarter) 
 

 
 
Contact Officer:  Nick Hayhurst – Head of Planning and Place  
 
Background Papers:  Planning Statistics (PS1 and PS2 Returns)  Page 85

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2021
	4a Application 4/21/2360/0O1 - Land at Scalegill Road, Moor Row
	4b Application 4/20/2455/0F1 - Land south of Waters Edge Close, Kells, Whitehaven
	5 Schedule of Delegated Decisions
	6 Development Management Performance Monitoring

